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Cautionary Statement about Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are
those that address activities, events or developments that we or our management
intends, expects, projects, believes or anticipates will or may occur in the
future. They are based on management's assumptions and assessments in the light
of past experience and trends, current conditions, expected future developments
and other relevant factors. They are not guarantees of future performance, and
actual results, developments and business decisions may differ from those
envisaged by our forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements are
also subject to risks and uncertainties, which can affect our performance in °
both the near- and long-term. These forward- looking statements should be
considered in the light of the information included in this report and our
other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including, without
limitation, the Risk Factors, as well as the description of trends and other
factors in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, set forth in our Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2006. o



" PART I.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial infoimétibn' as of June ‘30, 2007 should be read in conjunction with
the. f1nanc1a1 statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 conta:Lned in our -
'_form 10-K; f:Lled ‘on February 16, 2007

. ITEM 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Honeywell International Inc.

COnsolldated Statement of Operatlons

. Product sales
. Service sales-
Net sales

Costs, expenses and ethef
Cost of products sold -
' Cost.of services sold- -

Selling, general ‘and administrative
expenses o '
Other'(incoﬁe) -expense
5Interest -and other . flnanc1al
' charges S

Income from contlnulng operatzons
.before taxes
" Tax expense
‘Income  from continuing operatxons
Income from discontinued operatlonsf
net of taxes-
Net income

Earnings per share: of common stock-
basic:
Income from contlnulng operations
‘Income from discontinued operatlons
Net income

.Earnings per share of common stock-
assuming dilution: )
Income from continuing operations
Income from dlscontlnued operatlons
Net ‘income

_Cash dividends per share of common
‘stock

The Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudlted)

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2007

. 2006

~ 2007

2006

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

$ 6,872

S 6,381

_ $ 13,322 $ 12,187
1,666 1,517 3,257 2,952
8,538 7,898 16,579 15,139
5,318 4,931 10,328 9,497
1,173 1,096 2,313 2,130
6,491 6,027 . 12,641 11,627
1,127 1,086 2,216 2,088
(20) (17) (31) (42)

. 110 94 207 - 183
7,708 7,190 15,033 13,856
830 708 1,546 1,283

219 187 409 331

611 521 1,137 952

- . - - 5

$ 611 $ 521 $ 1,137 $ 957
$ 0.79 $ 0.63 $ 1.45 $ . 1.15
- - - 0.01

$§ 0.79 $ 0.63 $ .1.45 $ 1.16
$ 0.78 $ 0.63. - $  1.44 8 1.14
- - - 0.01

$ 0.78 $ 0.63 $ 1.44 'S 1.15
$ 0.25 $ -0.50  § 0.454

are an integraleart

$ 0.227

of this statement.



Honeywell Interhational_Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudi ted)
Jurie 30, . ' December 31,
2007 .. . 2006
-(Dollars in millions)
ASSETS . K
Current assets: ] . - T ;
Cash and cash equivalents : . $ 1,633 $ 1,224
Accounts, notes and other receivables - 6,118. . 5,740
Inventories _ ; 3,807 . - 3,588
Deferred income taxes : 1,197 1;215
Other current assets - ' 329 o h 470
Assets held for disposal : - 25 . Y
Total current assets ' - : 13,109 12,304
Investments and long-term receivables ) o 505 . . . 382
Property, plant ‘and equipment - net o . ) . 4,692 . 4,797
Goodwill ' 8,457 8,403
" Other intangible assets - net ' . 1,213 1,247 -
Insurance recoveries. for asbestos ’ ' R
related liabilities . © 1,107 - 1,100 °
Deferred income taxes : ) 925 ~..1,075
Prepaid pension benefit cost _ 820 S 695 -
Other assets 943 B . 938
Total assets $ 31,771 $ 30,941
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable’ _ ’ o $ 3,661 ° '$ 3,518
Short-term borrowings : : ) : 62 ©o62
Commercial paper ' ' 2,589 o 669
Current maturities of long-term debt 415 - 423
Accrued liabilities : " 5,638 - 5,455
Liabilities related to assets held for disposal . . 4 - 8
Total current liabilities 12,369 - 10,135
Long-term debt o : . . 4,485 -~ 3,909
Deferred income taxes ) - 455, 352.
Postretirement benefit obligationé other ' . ) : -
than pensions : : 2,075 - - 2,090
Asbestos related liabilities ) . ' ) 1,216 ) 1,262
Other liabilities ' ' 3,371 - . . 3,473
SHAREOWNERS ' EQUITY _ _ _
Capital - common stock issued ) 958 ) © 958
- additional paid-in capital : . 3,963 " . - 3,845
Common stock held in treasury, ‘at cost (9,295) - (6,339)
Accumulated other compiehensive income (loss) {(1,167) (1,307)
Retained earnings - 13,341 : 12,563
Total shareowners' equity 7,800 . 9,720
Total liabilities and shareowners' equity S 31,771 $ 30,941f

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



Honeywell International Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash. Flows
(Unaudited) )

Cash flows from operating actiVities
Net income : :

Adjustments to feconcile net income to net cash
prOVided by operating activities: o
: _DepreCiation ‘and amortization
Repositioning and other charges
Net (payments)' for repositioning and other. charges
".Pension and other postretirement expense S
Pension and other postretirement payments
" stock option expense ' '
‘Deferred income taxes
Excess tax benefits from share based payment arrangements
Other : :

'Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the effects

of acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts, notes. and other receivables
Inventories: . .
Other currentzassets

. Accounts payable

- Accrued liabilities

Net cash prOVided by operating activities

Cash flows_frcm inVesting activities: :

. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment .
Proceeds from disposals'of-property, plant and equipment
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of fees paid

. Net cash (used for) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase/ (decrease)in commercial paper
Net (decrease) in’ short-term borrowings
Payment of debt assumed with acquisitions
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Proceeds from. issuance of long-term debt -
Payments of long-term debt :
Excess tax benefits from share based payment arrangements
Repurchases of common stock '
Cash dividends on common stock

Net cash'(used_for) financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Six Months Ended

June 30,

2007

2006

(Dollars in millions)

$ 1,137

$ 9587
413 406
304 245
(173) (154)
146 244
(108) (178)
a1 41
197 126
(51) -
26 (5)
(352) (243)
(202) (208)
36 42
143 78
4 (177)
1,561 1,174
.(283) . (271)
82 . a4
(108) (608)
52 576
(257) (259)
1,913 (106)
- (210)
T - (346)
. 424 " 239
988 1,239
(407) (353) °
(3,487) (828)
- (392) (376)
(910) (741)
15 16
409 190 °
1,224 1,234
3 1,633 31,424



Honeywell International Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
(Unaudited) '
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1. Basis of Presentation

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolldated
flnanc1al statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
" adjustments, necessary to present’ fairly the financial position. of Honeywell
International Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries at June 30, 2007 and the’
results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006
and cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. . The results of
operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 should not .
necessarily be taken as indicative of the results of operatlons that may be_
expected for the entire year.

We report our quarterly financial -information using a calendar ‘convention;
that is, the first, second and third ‘quarters are cons1stently reported as ending
on March 31, June 30 and September 30, respectively. It has been.our practice to
. establish actual quarterly closing dates using a predetermlned “fiscal” calendar,
which requires our businesses to close their books on a Saturday in order to
minimize the potentially disruptive effects of quarterly closing on our business
processes. The effects of this practice are generally not significant to-reported
results for any quarter and only exist within a reportlng year. In the event that
differences in actual closing dates are material to year-over-year comparisons of
quarterly or year-to-date results, we will provide appropriate disclosures. Our
actual closing dates for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2007 and
2006 were June 30, 2007 and July 1, 2006, respectively. Our fiscal closing
calendar for the years 2000 through 2012 is available on our web31te at
www.Honeywell .com under the heading “Investor Relations”.

The financial information as of June 30, 2007 should be read'in'conjnnction
with the financial statements for the year. ended December 31, 2006 contained in
our Form 10-K filed on February 16, 2007.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to. conform to- current- year
presentatlon :

NOTE 2._ Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In June 2006, the Financial Accounting-
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN”) No. 48 “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes-~ an interpretation of FASB Statement 109”. FIN 48

establishes a single model to_address accounting for uncertain tax positions. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition
threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the
financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, dlsclosure
and transition. Upon adoption as of January 1, 2007, we reduced our existing
reserves for uncertain tax positions by $33 million, largely related to a
reduction in state income tax matters, partially offset by a net increase for
federal and international tax reserves. This reduction was recorded as a
cumulative effect adjustment to shareowners’ equity. Additionally, we decreased a
deferred tax asset and its associated valuation allowance by $44 million and
increased goodwill by $1 million. '

As of January 1, 2007, we had $744 million of unrecognized tax benefits. If
recognized, approximately $575 million, would be recorded as a component: of income

6



tax expense. In the gquarter ended June 30, 2007, the Company increased its

- unrecognized tax benefits by $1 million due to additional reserves for various
international and U.S.. tax. audit matters which were substantially offset by a tax
benefit’ from the favorable resolution of a tax audit. The increase was recorded as
a: charge to income tax expense. As of June 30, 2007 we had $745 million of

- unrecognlzed tax benefits. If" recognlzed approx1mately $573 million would be

recorded as a component of income tax expense

] In many cases our uncertaln tax p051tlons are related to tax years that
remaln subject to examination by the relevant tax authorities. The follow1ng
table summarlzes these open tax’ years by major jurlsdlctlon as of June 30, 2007:

Open Tax Year:

Jurisdiction o Examlnatlon in - . . .. Examination not yet .
. B ' : progress © initiated
‘United States (1) 1996 - 2005 T 2006
.- United Kingdom: ' © 71999 - 2005 © . . 2006
" Canada (1) o 11991 - 2004 . 2005 - 2006
.- Germany (1) I 1998 -.2004 . . 2005 - 2006
' France . S _ 1 2000 - 2005 L .. . 2006
- Netherlands . 12002, 2004 - 2005 2000 - 2001, 2003, 2006
‘Australia - N/A ' 2003 - 2006
' China L o N/A . 1997 - 2006
India - ' ~ 2002 - 2005 . 2006

(1) "includes federal as well as state, prov1nc1al or 51m11ar local
jurlsdlctlons, as applicable :

Based on. the outcome of these examlnatlons, or as . a result of the expiration of
"statute of limitations for specific jurlsdlctlons, it is reasonably possible that
the related unrecognized tax benefits for tax positions taken regarding previously
'filed tax returns, will materially change from those recorded as liabilities for
uncertain tax positions in our financial statements.. In addition, the outcome of-
these examlnatlons may impact the valuation of certain deferred tax assets (such
as net operating losses) in future periods. Based on the number of tax years
currently under audit by the relevant federal, ~state and foreign tax authorities,
the Company anticipates that several of these audits may be finalized in the '
‘foreseeable future. However, based on the status of . these- examinations, and the
protocol of flnallzlng audits by the relevant tax authorities, which could include
-_formal legal proceedings, at this time it is not possible to estimate the- 1mpact
of any amount of such changes, if any, to prev1ously recorded uncertain tax’

. positions.

Unrecognlzed tax beneflts for the above llsted examinations in progress were
'$502 million and $479 million as of January 1, 2007 and June 30, 2007,
respectively: This decrease is primarily due to the settlement of a tax
examination during the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

Estimated interest and penalties related to the'underpayment of income taxes-
are classified as a component of Tax Expense in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations and. totaled $11 million and $18 million for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2007, respectively. Accrued interest and penalties were $98

million and $116 million as of January 1, 2007 and June 30, 2007, .respectively.

-In May 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) ‘FIN 48-1 Definition
of Settlement in FASB Interpretation No. 48 (FSP FIN 48-1). FSP FIN 48-1 provides
guidance on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively settled for the
purpose of recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. FSP FIN 48-1 is
effective retroactively to January 1, 2007. The implementation of this standard
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial p051tlon or results
of operatlons .



In July 2007, Germany enacted a change in its tax law that decreases its .
corporate tax rate as well as its trade' tax base rate. The Company will apply-
this change in law prospectively from the enactment date and is. currently
assessing the impact on our consolldated financial position and results of .

. operations. :

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) AUG AIR-1
“Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities” (FSP AUG AIR—l) FSP AUG
AIR-1 amends the guidance on the accounting for planned major malntenance
act1v1t1es, specifically it precludes the use of the previously acceptable Maccrue
in advance’’ method. FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years beglnnlng after
December 15, 2006. The 1mplementatlon of this standard did not have a materlal
impact on. our consolidated financial position or results of operatlons

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of F1nanc1al'Account1ng" :
Standard " (“SFAS”) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS No. '157) SFAS No:. 157
_establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to US GAAP requiring
use of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands-
disclosure about such fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently asse831ng_
. the impact of SFAS No. 157 on our consolldated flnanclal position and results of
operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 “The Fair Value Option for
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 permits
entities to choose to measure many financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for whlch the fair value option
has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 'is effective for fiscal
Yyears beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently asseSsing'the'
impact of SFAS No. 159 on our coénsolidated financial position and results of
operatlons : '

In March 2007, the FASB ratified Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-10
“Accounting for Collateral Assignment Split-Dollar Life Insurance Agreements”’ )
(EITF 06-10).. EITF 06-10 provides guidance for determining a liability for the -
postretirement benefit obligation as well as recognition and measurement of the
associated asset on the basis of the terms of the collateral assignment’ agreement.
EITF 06-10 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007. .The
implementation of this standard will not have a material 1mpact on our '
consolidated financial p051tlon and results of operatlons

In June 2007, the FASB ratlfled EITF 06-11 “Accountlng for the Income Tax
Benefits of Dividends on Share-Based Payment Awards” (EITF 06~ 11) EITF 06-11
prov1des that tax benefits associated with dividends on share-based payment awards
be recorded as a component of additional paid-in capltal EITF 06-11 is"
effective, on a prospective basis, for fiscal years beginning ‘after December 15,
2007. The Company is currently assessing the impact of EITF 06-11 on our .
consolldated f1nanc1al p051tlon and results of operatlons - :



NOTE 3 Rep051tlon1ng and Other Charges
A summary of rep031tlon1ng and other charges follows

Three Months Ended ) : Six Months Ended

- June 30, _ June 30,
} - . . ; - 2007 - . -2006 : 2007 2006 -
' Severance - ': R ' ) _ ) $ 45 $ .23 .. $§ 119 s a7
' Asset impairments oL - 4 - 10 oo
Exit costs SR . S - 20 o s - .4
' Adjustments” 1 . S R ¢-)) (n - I (9)
. Total net repos;tlonlng charge S . a4 ) 18 - .l25 42
Asbestos related 11t1gat10n charges,. o .
net of insurance. S - : C .21 - . 49 45 77
-Probable and reasonably'estimable " . S
environmental liabilities- o 60 o 48 120 110
" .Business -impairment charges - ’ . - . - ) - 9
| Other © "7 .. o - - 1 o 7
Total net rep051tlon1ng and other charges § 125 $ 115 s 304 s 245

The follow1ng table summarizes the. pretax distribution of total net
rep051tlon1ng and other charges by income statement class1f1catlon-'

Three Months Ended . Six Months Ended

June 30, ] . June 30,
_ o _ . . o 2007 - 2006 - 2007 2006
" Cost of products and services sold $ 114 o - $ 115 - $ 273 " s 245
Selling, general and administrative ekpenses_ .11 : - . L 31 -
' ' $ 125, . § 115 5 304 $ 245

The following table summarizes the pretax 1mpact of total net rep051tlon1ng and
other charges by segment .

Three Months Ended * 8ix Months Ended

June 30, = - . June 30,
_ 2007 2006 2007 2006
RAerospace R ' ' : $ 5 $ 2 $ 31 ' $ 3
Automation and Control Solutions : ' 37 10 78 19
Specialty Materials . : (1) D) ' 4 _ 6
Transportatlon Systems . ] 24 24 55 - _ 66
' .Corporate - : : . o T 60 : .80 L 136 : 151

$ 125 ’ $ 115 . $ 304 " $ 245

. In the second quarter of 2007, we'recognized a net repositioning charge of '
$44 million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductions of 807
manufacturing and administrative positions associated with the rationalization of
manufacturing capacity and infrastructure and a plant closure, pr1nc1pally in our
Automatlon and Control Solutions segment.

- In the Second quarter of 2006, we recognizeda repositioning charge of $25
million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductions of 482
manufacturing and administrative positions mainly in our Aerospace, Automation and
Control Solutions and Transportation Systems segments. Also, during the second
quarter of 2006, $7 million of previously established accruals, primarily for

9.



severance at our Aerospace -and Specialty Materlals segments, were returned to
income due primarily to changes in the scope of prev1ously announced severance.
programs :

In the first six months of 2007, we recognized a net. repos1t10n1ng charge of
$125 million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductlons of
2,142 manufacturing and administrative positions associated with the
rationalization of manufacturing capacity and infrastructure and plant closures,'
principally in our Automation and Control Solutions and Aerospace segments.

In the first six months of 2006, we recognized a net repositioning'charge of
$42 million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductions of 1,008
manufacturing and administrative positions in our Automation and Control
Solutlons, Transportatlon Systems and Aerospace segments.

The follow1ng table summarlzes the status of our total rep031tlon1ng
reserves:

Severance Asset - ._ Exit

Costs Impairments Costs . - Total
_Balance at December 31, 2006 $118 -8 - R $9 '_.$l27v
2007 charges __ : 119 10 5 134
2007 usage . . (45) (10) (5) . (60).
Adjustments (9) - - S " (9)
' Balance at June 30, 2007 183 s - 89 . s192

In the second quarter of 2007, we recognized a charge of $60 million for-
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the quarter.
We also recognized a charge of $21 million, net of probable insurance recoveries,
representing an update to our estimated liability for the resolution. of Bendix
related asbestos claims .as of June 30, 2007. Asbestos matters -are discussed in
detail in Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies. :

- In the second quarter of 2006, we recognized a charge of $48 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the quarter.
We also recognized a charge of $49 million, primarily for Bendix related asbestos
claims filed and defense costs incurred during the second quarter of 2006, including:
an update of expected resolution values with respect to claims pendingfas-of June
30, 2006, net of probable insurance recoveries. The asbestos related charge also
included the net effect of the settlement of certain NARCO related pendlng asbestos
claims and a Bendix related insurance settlement :

'In the first six months of 2007, we recognized a charge of $120 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the period.
We recognized a charge of $45 million, net of probable insurance'recoyeries,
representing an update to our estimated liability for the resolution of Bendix
related asbestos claims as of June 30, 2007. We also recognized other charges of
$14 million for a business sale tax related to a prior divestiture ($8 mllllon)
and for a contemplated settlement of a legal matter ($6 million) .

In the first six months of 2006, we recognized a'charge of $110 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the period.
We recognlzed a charge.of $77 million primarily for Bendix related asbestos claims
filed and defense costs incurred during the first six months of 2006, including an
‘update of expected resolution values with respect to claims pending as of June 30,
2006, net of probable insurance recoveries. The asbestos related charge also
included the net effect of the settlement of certain NARCO related pending
asbestos claims and a Bendix related insurance settlement. We alsoc recognized .
business impairment charges of $9 million primarily related to the write-down of

10



property; plant and equipment held for sale in our Speéialty Materials segment,
and other charges of 87 million primarily related to a property damage litigation

-matter in our Corporate segment.

NOTE-4. Other_(income)'expenseg

'Equ;ty (incoﬁe)/loss of
affiliated companies

Gain'on sale of non-strategié-

‘businesses and assets
- Interest income
Forelgn_exchange.
"Other (net).

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

2007 2006 2007 2006
$ (@ sm s @ s
(15) S (3) (s) (19)
(20) (18) 39 (37
7 3 12 4

12 -2 13- -9
$(20) samn $G1) sz
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NOTE 5;_ Earnings Per Share

. The details of the earnings per share calculations for the three months and
six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows

Three Months Ended June 30,

2007 . 2006 -
Assuming - : '_-'. Assuming
Basic Dilution . Basic . Dilution
Income _ S ' T _ _
Net income _ 0§ 611 '$ 611 0§ 521 . §. s21
Average shares: _ _ o o o _
Average .shares outstandiﬁg : 768.3 768.3 _ 825;Oh3". '525.0
Dilutive securities issuable in . . L f_' . '
- connection with’ stock plans : - 10.4 i N - : 5.3
Total average shares outstanding 768.3 778.7 . 825.0- _.. 830.3
Earnings per share of common stock . ) - ) .
Net income - ' $0.79  $0.78 $0.63 - -80.63

Six Months Ended June 30,
2007 ) : ) 2006 -

Assuming . . '~ Assuming
Basic Dilution "Basic. -~ _ Dilution
Income : _ ' : o :
Income from continuing operations o $1,137 $1,137 . $ 952 - § 952
Income from discontinued'operations, ' ) C
net of taxes ' : - : - 5 - -5
Net income $1,137 $1,137 : $ 957 - 8§ 957
'Average”shares _ . : _ :
Average shares outstanding ' 781.4 781.4 827.5  °  827.5
Dilutive securities issuable in - ' - ' _ . . .
connection with stock plans - 9.0 . - 5.1
Total average shares outstanding : - 781.4 790.4 827.5 - 832.6
Earnings. per share of common stock _ : . _
Income from continuing operations o $ 1.45 $ 1.44 - $1.15 8 1.14
'Income from discontinued operations,. . ' . _ . )
. net of taxes : - - 0.01 . 0.01

Net income _ - $ 1.45 $ 1.44 $1.16  $1.15

The diluted earnings per share calculations exclude the effect of stock
options when the options’ assumed proceeds exceed the average market price of the
common shares during the period. For the three months ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, the number of stock options excluded from the computations were 11.6 and
.22.1 million, respectively. For the six months ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the
number. of stock options excluded from the computations were 11.4 and 18.0 million,
respectively. These stock options were outstanding at the end of each of the
respective periods.
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NOTE 6. .Accounts, notes and.other receivables

June 30, ‘ December 31,
2007 2006
Prade - T . . 85,807 $5,373
"'Other . SR T _— 513 : "~ 584
oL - . , 6,320 - 5,957
- Less - Allowance for doubtful accounts . (202) o (217)
: . $6,118 - $5,740
NOTE 7.~ Inventories
June 30, December 31,
2007 . 2006
‘Raw materials . $1,681 $1,625
Work in process - 777 " 808
'Finished products 1,519 . 1,342
-3,977 : 3,775
Less - Progress payments (7) (17)
= Reductlon to LIFO cost basis (163) -~ (170)
- $3,807 - $3,588

' NQTE.B;' Goodwill and Other Intangible Asséts - Net'

The change in the carrying amount of goodw;ll for the six months ended June

30, 2007 by - segment is as follows:

. Currency
) Translation
Dec. 31, 2006  Acquisitions Divestitures Adjustment June 30, 2007

Aerospace - _ - $1,745 | $ 4 ' $ - $ 2 $1,751

Automation and ’ . _ A L .
. Control Solutions ‘4,959 ' 54 T C(2) 5,010
Specialty Materials o 1,151 1 (6) - : 1,146
" Pransportation Systems - 548 - - : - 2 550
' ' : $8.,403 $ 59 $ (1) $2 $8,457

Other intangible assets are comprised of:

June 30, 2007

December 31, 2006

Gross ’ Net Gross . Net
‘Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount -Amount Amortization Amount
Intangible assets with
determinable lives: )
.Patents and technology . $ 945 - $(460) $ 485 $ 923 " $(410) . § 513
_Customer relationships i 530 ©(89) 441 506 (68) 438
Trademarks 134 (28) ) 106 130 (22) 108
' Other ) : ) 320 . (241) 79 322 (236) 86
. ) 1,929 (818) ._1,111 1,881 (736) 1,145
Trademarks with indefinite ) .
lives 102 - - . © 102 102 : - : 102
$2,031 $(818) $1,213 $1,983 $(7136) $1.247

Amortization expense related to intangible assets for the six months ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006 was $78 and $65 million, respectively.
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NOTE 9. - Longétérm Debt and Credit Agreements

- June 30, .‘beoémbér_31;

2007 . 2006
7.0% notes due 2007 ' : . $ - . .'$ 350
7-1/8% notes due 2008 . - _ 200 . - 200
6.20% notes due 2008 : S I 200 - . 200
Floating rate notes due 2009 : - - 300 L - 300 .
Zero coupon bonds -and money multlpller notes A R E
13.0%-14.26%, due 2009 : 100 o100
Floating rate notes due 2009- 2011 ' : 239 . " 239
7.50% notes due 2010 N ) _ : 1,000 5.-* 1;000
6-1/8% notes due 2011 ‘ . : " 500 .7 50O
5.40% notes due 2016 ' : o - 400 - 7 400
5.30% notes due 2017 - ' ' _ - 400 . =
Industrial development bond obllgatlons, 3.25%- . : S
9.50% maturing at various dates through 2037 . 64 R 65
6-5/8% debentures due 2028 o - - 216 S 1216
9.065% debentures due 2033 _ ' g o 5.~ .~ - 51
5.70% notes due 2036 S . 8550 - . . B50
5.70% notes due 2037 - ' : : . 800. -
Other (including capitalized leases),. 1.9%-13.5% o e : g .
maturing at various dates through 2020 80 - .o 161
. _ ' : . 4,900 . - . * 4,332
Less current portion o _ ' ©(415) . . (423)
'§4,485 . $3,909

The schedule of pr1nc1pa1 payments on long term debt is as follows

At June 30, 2007

2007 ' ' : ' 8 14
2008 : _ ' 416
2009 ' _ : . ' _ - 511
2010 . _ ' . . ' : 1,130
2011 : - ' : _ - 527
Thereafter ' : ' S 2,302
' - _ o o 4,900
Less-current portion o ' (415)
: ' .§4,485__'

In May 2007 the Company entered into a $2.8 billion Amended and Restated

Five Year Credit Agreement (“Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks.
Commitments under the Credit Agreement can be increased pursuant to the terms of
the Credit Agreement to an aggregate amount not to exceed $3.5 billion. The

. Credit Agreement is maintained for general corporate purposes, including-support
for the issuance of commercial paper, and replaces the previous $2.3 billion five
year credit agreement dated April 27, 2006 (“Prior Agreement”) . There have been
no borrowings under the Credit Agreement. No borrowings were outstandihg'at any
time under the Prioir Agreement. The Credit Agreement does not restrict the
Company’s ability to pay dividends, nor does it contain financial-covenants._

In March 2007, the Company issued $400 million 5.30% Senior Notes due 2017
and .$600 million 5. 70% Senior Notes due 2037 (collectively, the “Notes”). The
Notes are senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Honeywell and rank
equally with all of Honeywell’s existing and future senior unsecured debt and
senior to all Honeywell’s subordinated debt. The offering resulted in gross
proceeds of $1 billion, offset by $12 million in debt issuance costs.
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NOTE 103'Stock—Based Compensation Plans

Compensatlon cost related to stock optlons recognlzed in operatlng results
-(1nc1uded in selling, general and administrative expenses) under SFAS No. 123R was
$17 .and ' $41 million in the three and six months ended June 30, 2007, respectively.
'Compensatlon cost related to- stock options was $16 and $41 million in the three
and.six months ended June 30, 2006 ,- respectively. "The associated future income
tax. beneflt recognlzed was $6 and $15 million in the three and six months ended
- June 30, 2007 -respectively. The associated future income tax benefit recognlzed
"was $3 and $12 mllllon in the three and six months. ended June 30, 2006,
_respectlvely : :

. The follow1ng table sets forth fair value per share information, including
related weighted-average assumptions, used to determine compensatlon cost for our

.stock optlons cons;stent w1th the requirements of SFAS ‘No. 123R.

Three Months Ended . Six Months Ended

'June 30, June 30,
L : _ o 2007 2006 . 2007 . 2006 .
Weighted average fair value per share ' i :
of options granted during the period
‘(estlmated on grant date using I . ' . :
Black- Scholes opt10n—pr1c1ng model) $11.00. $10.30 $10.22 $9.44
Assumptlons : S o ' ' .
Expected volatlllty ' : o 19.80% - 23.40% = 20.14% © 22.15%
- Expected annual. dividend yleld o 1.96% .. 2.10% 2.10% 2.15%
' Risk free rate of return 4.59%.  5.00% - 4.66% 4.63%
: Expected option term (years) 5.3 5.0 5.3 _ 5.0

The following table summarizes 1nformatlon about stock optlon act1v1ty for
'the six months ended June 30, 2007:

. . Weighted
- ‘Weighted ‘Average o
Number Average Remaining'_ Aggregate
of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price’ Term (years) Value ($M)
Outstandlng at December 31 2006 54,232,677 "-'$39.98 ' 5.7 $406
Granted : 5,901,300 © . 47.49 B -
" Exercised ' . (11,223,066) . '_37.36
Lapsed or canceled (1‘391:455) K 46.30 S o
Outstanding at June 30, 2007 ) - 47,519,456 $41.37 ' 6.1 $744
Vested and expected to vest - ' _— :
at June 30 ,2007 (1) : 44,948,321 $41.15 - - 6.1 $715
Exercisable at June 30, 2007 .. 34,086,295 $40.54 5.0 $571

- (1) The.expected to vest options are the result of applying the pre-vesting
forfeiture rate assumption to total outstanding options.

- The total intrinsic value of options (which is the amount by which the stock
price exceeded the exercise price ‘of the options on the date of exercise)
exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2007 was $169 million. During the
six months ended June 30, 2007, the amount of cash received from the exercise of
stock options was $419 million with an associated tax benefit realized of $63
‘million.  Consistent with the requirements of SFAS No. 123R, we classified $51
million of this benefit as a financing cash inflow in the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, and the balance was classified as cash from operations.

At June 30,.2007, there was $97 million of total unrecognized compensation
cost related to non-vested stock option awards which is expected to be recognized
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over a weighted-average period of 2.39 years. The total falr value of optlons
vested during the six months ended June 30, 2007 was $82 million.

The following table summarizes information about Restrlcted Stock Un1t (RSUrf
activity for the six months ended June 30, 2007:

Weighted
- Number of Average
Restricted Grant Date
Stock : Fair Value
Units Per Share
Non-vested at December 31, 2006 © 4,751,999 $35.85
' Granted 769,760 47.32
Vested . . ' (175,853) 35.59
Forfeited (298, 469) . 38.07
——

Non-vested at June 30, 2007 ) ’ 5,047,437 -$37.47

At June 30, 2007, there was approxlmately $200 million of total unrecognlzed
compensation cost related to non-vested RSUs granted under our stock plans whlch
is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2. 29 years

. Compensation expense related to RSUs (included in selling, general and
administrative expenses) for the three and six months ended June- 30, 2007 was $15-
and $30 million, respectively. Compensation expense related to RSUs for: the three
and six months ended June 30, 2006 was $9 and $18 million, respectively.

.NOTE 11. Other ComprehehSive Income/(Loss)

Other comprehen51ve 1ncome/(loss) consists of the following:

Three Months Ended ' Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 - 2006
Net income $611 .. 8521 $1,137 $ 957 |
Foreign exchange translation _ o : _
adjustments 48 85 66 55 -
Pension and postretirement : ]
benefit adjustments : 33 - ) 78. . -
Change in fair value of . R
effective cash flow hedges 1 15 ~(4) S 11
' 693 621 - $1,277 $1,023
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NOTE 12. Segment Financial Data

Net Sales

‘Aerospace

Automation and Control Solutlons
Specialty Materials
. Transportation Systems
'ZCorporate '

se Profi
Aerospaée. . . .
Automation and Control Solutions
Spec1a1ty Materials
'Transportatlon Systems
Corporate '
Total Segment Proflt

Other income (expense)

_ Interest and other financial charges

Stock option expense (A)

. Pension_and other postretirement
expense'(A)'

RepoSitioning and other charges (A)

Income from continuing operatlons
before taxes

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2007 2006 2007 "~ 2006
$ 3,027 $ 2,686 "$ 5,867 '$ 5,315
3,039 2,766 5,840 5,131
1,216 1,253 2,415 2,405 .
1,256 1,193 2,457 2,288
$ 8,538 $ 7,898 $ 16,579 $ 15,139
$ 523° $ 413 $ 1,023 $ 853
333 287 607 508
175 217 367 379 .
157 165 © 313 307
_(54)" (48) (97) - (93)
1,134 1,034 2,213 1,954
20 ‘17 31 42
(110) (94) (207) - (183)
(17) (;6) (41) ©(41)
(72). (118) (146) (244)
(125) (115) (304) (245)
$ 830 $ 708 $ 1,546 $ 1,283

(A) Amounts included in cost of.prodncts and services sold and selling, general -

and.administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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/NOTE .13, Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

 Net periodic pension and other postretirement benefits costs for our
significant deflned benefit plans 1nclude the follow1ng components

" Three Months Ended

8ix Mbnfhs Ended_

June 30, JUne 30,

2007 2006 2007 . 2006

Pension Benefits :
Service cost $. 69 $ 70 -s 137 ~$ 140
. Interest cost 238 221 475 . 440
' Expected return on plan assets (336) © o (307) . (669) . (611)
Amortization of transition liability - (1) L= 1
Amortization of prior service cost 7 7. 13 " 13
Recognition of actuarial losses 48 - 82 . 96 161
Settlements and curtailments - (11) - (11)
' ’ $ 26 $ 61 $ 52 . - '$§ 133

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June - 30, June 30,

. . 2007 . 2006 2007 2006

Other Postretirement Benefits _ : : o '
Service cost $ 4 $ 5 $ 9" $ 10
Interest cost. 32 29 64 . 59
Expected return on plan assets _ - = = -
Amortization of prior service (credit) (11) (9) (22) (19)
‘Recognition of actuarial losses 12 18 24 36
Tognt : 3 37 'S 43 $ 75 - § 86

NOTE 14. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign govérnment
requirements relating to the protection of the environment. We believe that,-as a
general matter, our policies, practices and procedures are properly designed to
prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and personal injury and .that our
handling, manufacture, use and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances are in
accordance with environmental and safety laws and regulations. However, mainly .
because of past operations and operations of predecessor companies, we, like other
companies engaged in similar businesses, have incurred remedial.response and
voluntary cleanup costs for site contamination and are a party to lawsuits and
claims associated with environmental and safety matters, including past production
of products containing toxic substances. Additional lawsuits, claims and costs
_involving environmental matters are likely to continue to arise in the future.

With respect to environmental matters involving site_contamination,
continuélly conduct studies, individually or Jjointly with other potentially
responsible parties, to determine the feasibility of various remedial techniques
to address environmental matters. It is our policy to record appropriate’
liabilities for environmental matters when remedial efforts or daﬁage claim . :
payments are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities
are based on our best estimate of the undiscounted future costs required to
complete the remedial work. The recorded liabilities are adjusted periodicaliy as
remeédiation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information
becomes available. Given the uncertainties regarding the status of_laws}
regulations, enforcement policies, the impact of other potentially résponsible
parties, technology and information related to individual sites, we do not believe
it is possible to develop an estimate of the range of reasonably possible
environmental loss in excess of our accruals. We expect to fund expenditures for
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these matters from operatlng cash flow. The timing of cash expendltures depends on
a number of factors, including the tlmlng of remedial- 1nvest1gatlons and
feasibility ‘'studies, the_tlmlng of litigation and settlements of remediation
~liability, persomal'injury and property damage claims, regulatory approval of
cleanup projects, remedial ‘techniques to be utilized and agreements with other
: parties The following table summarizes 1nformatlon concernlng our recorded
liabilities for env1ronmental costs:

Six Months.Ended
June 30, 2007

Beglnnlng of perlod : o : o S 831
:Accruals for env1ronmental matters deemed L : :

. probable and reasonably estimable T o L . 121
“Env1ronmental llablllty payments B _ o ~ (125)

_ Other adjustments- . _ - A _ -. : T

. End of perlod : e : A L E—Egz

_ Env1ronmenta1 11ab111t1es are 1nc1uded in the follow1ng balance sheet
accounts : ' i

June 30, 2007  December 31, 2006

Accrued liabilities I — $260 - _ $o51
Other_liabilities' ' _ o " 574 o : 580

$834 R $831

_Although:we'do not currently possess sufficient information to reasonably
estimate the amounts of liabilities to be recorded upon future completion of
studies; litigation or settlements, and neither the timing nor the amount of the
‘ultimate costs associated with environmental matters can be determined, they could
be material to our consolidated results of operations or operating cash flows in
the periods - recognized or paid. However, considering our past experience and
existing reserves, we do not expect that these environmental matters w111 have a
‘material adverse: effect on our consolldated f1nanc1a1 position.

New Jersey Chrome Sltes - Prov1s1ons have been- made in our flnanclal
statements for the estimated costs of the court-ordered excavation and transport
-for offsite disposal of approximately one million tons of chromium residue present
-.at a predecessor Honeywell site_located in Jersey.City, New Jersey, which are
expected .to be incurred evenly over a five-year period that started in April 2006.
We do .not expect implementation of this remedy to have a material adverse effect
on our future consolidated results of operations, operating cash flows or )
financial position. Provision also has been made in our financial statements for
the estimated costs of implementing groundwater and sediment remedial plans, which
have been proposed for the site and are presently. under review by the court in
which litigation concerning the site is pending. The ultimate cost of remediating .
the river sediments may be reduced as numerous third parties could be responsible
for an as yet undetermined portion of these costs. -

The above-referenced site is the most significant of the twenty-one sites
located in Hudson County, New Jersey which are the subject of an Administrative
- Consent Order (ACO) entered into with the New Jersey Department of Environmental
Protection (NJDEP) in 1993. Remedial investigations and activities consistent with
~the ACO have been conducted and are underway at the other sites (the “Honeywell
ACO Sites”). We have recorded reserves for the Honeywell ACO Sites where
appropriate under the accountlng policy described above

_On May 3, 2005, NJDEP filed a lawsult in New Jersey Superior Court against
Honeywell and two other companies seeking declaratory -and injunctive relief,
unspecified damages, and the reimbursement_of unspecified total costs relating to
sites in New Jersey allegedly contaminated with chrome ore processing residue. The
claims against Honeywell relate to the activities of a predecessor company which
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‘ceased its New Jersey manufacturing operations in the nid-1950"s. While the _
complaint is not entirely clear, it appears that approximately 100 sites:are'at"

issue, including 17 of. the Honeywell ACO Sites, sites that the other two companies

have agreed to remediate under separate administrative consent orders, as well as -
approximately 53 other sites (identified in the complaint as the “Publiciy Funded "
Sites”) for which none of the three companies has signed an'administratiVe_consent
order. In addition to claims specific to each company, NJDEP claims that all three
companies should be collectively liable for all the chrome sites based on a
“market share” theory. In addition, NJDEP is seeking treble damages for all costs’
it has incurred or will incur at the Publicly Funded Sites. Honeywell believes -
“that it has no connection with the sites covered by the other companles',

" administrative consent orders and, therefore, has no responsibility for those
sites. At the Honeywell ACO Sites, we are conducting remedial investigations_and
activities consistent with the ACO; thus, we do not believe the lawsuit will
s1gn1f1cantly change our obligations with respect to the Honeywell ACO Sites.
Lawsuits have also been filed against Honeywell in the District Court under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) by two New Jersey mun1c1pal '
‘utilities seeking the cleanup of chromium residue at twé Honeywell ACO sites and
by a citizens’ group against Honeywell and thirteen other defendants w1th respect
to contamination on about a dozen of the Honeywell ACO Sites. Discovery is
underway in these cases. For the reasons stated above, we do not belleve these
lawsuits will significantly change our obligations with respect to the Honeywell
ACO sites.

Although it is not possible at this time to predict the outcomeé of the
litigation and administrative proceedings discussed above, we believe that the
allegations are without merit and we intend to vigorously defend against these
lawsuits. We do not expect these matters to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position. While we expect to prevail, an adverse. 11t1gatlon
outcome could have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of
operations and operating cash flows in the periods recognlzed or paid.

Onondaga Lake, Syracuse, NY — A predecessor company to Honeywell operated a
chemical plant which is alleged to have contributed mercury and other contamlnants
to the Lake.. In July 2005, the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation (the DEC) issued.its Record of Decision with respect to remediation
of industrial contamination in the Lake. In October 2006, Honeywell entered into a -
Consent Decree with the State of New York to 1mplement the remedy set forth in the

Record of Decision. In January 2007, the Consent Decree was approved by the United -

States District Court for the Northern District of New York.

The Record of Decision calls for a comblned dredging/capping remedy
generally in line with the approach recommended in the Feasibility Study submitted
by Honeywell in May 2004. Based on currently available information and. analysis
performed by our engineering consultants, we have adccrued for our estimated cost
of implementing the remedy set forth in the Record of Decision. Our. estimating
process considers a range of possible outcomes and the amounts recorded reflect
our best estimate at this time. Given the scope and complexity of this project, it
is possible that actual costs could exceed estimated costs by an amount that could
have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations and
operating cash flows in the periods recognized or paid. At this time, however, we
cannot identify any legal, regulatory or technical reason to conclude that a
specific alternative outcome is more probable than the outcome for which we have
made provisions in our financial statements. The DEC’'s aggregate cost estimate,
which is higher than the amount reserved, is based on the high end of the range of
potential costs for major elements of the Record of Decision and includes a
contingency. The actual cost of the Record of Decision will depend upon, among
other things, the resolution of certain technical issues during the design phase
of the remediation. We do not believe that this matter will have a material
adverse impact on our consolidated financial position. In December 2006, the

'United States Fish and Wildlife Service published notice of its intent to pursue
natural resource damages related to the site. It is not possible to predict the
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outcéme or timing Of_its assessments, which are typically lengthy processes
lasting several years, or the amounts of or responsibility for these damages.

'Dundalk Marine Terminal, Baltimore - Chrome residue from legacy chrome plant
' operations in Baltimore was deposited as fill at the Dundalk Marine Terminal
“(“DMT”) , which is owned and operated by the Maryland Port Administration (“MPA”).
Honeywell and the MPA have been sharing costs to investigate and mitigate related
) env1ronmental -issues, and have entered into a cost sharing agreement under which =
: Honeywell will bear a 77 percent share of the costs of developing and implementing
permanent remedies for the DMT facility. The investigative phase (which began in

- April .2006) is expected to take approximately 18 to 36 months, after which the

napproprlate remedies will be identified and chosen. We have negotiated a Consent
‘Decree with the MPA and Maryland Department of the Environment (“MDE’’) with
-:respect to the lnvestlgatlon and remediation of the DMT facility, and that Consent
.Decree was filed with the Maryland state court for Baltimore County, Maryland.
BUILD,  a Baltimore community group, together with a local church and two
trlnd1v1duals, have intervened and are challenging the Consent Decree.. We. do not
‘believe. that this’ matter will have a material adverse ‘impact on our consolidated
'financial position or operating cash flows. Given the.scope and complexity of this
project, it is possible that the cost of remediation, when.determinable, could '
- have a material adverse 1mpact on our results of operatlons in the perlods
recognlzed .

Asbestos Matters

_ Like many other 1ndustr1a1 companies, Honeywell is a defendant in personal
1njury actions related to asbestos. We did not mine or produce asbestos, nor did
we make or sell insulation products or other construction materials that have been
identified as the primary cause of asbestos related disease in the vast majority
‘0of claimants. Products containing asbestos previously. manufactured by Honeywell or
by previously owned subsidiaries primarily fall into two general categorles
refractory products and friction products.

Refractory Products — Honeywell owned North American Refractories Company
(NARCO) ‘from 1979 to 1986. NARCO produced refractory products (high temperature
bricks and cement) that were sold largely to the steel industry in the East and
Midwest. Less than 2 percent of NARCO’S products contained asbestos.

When we sold the NARCO business in 1986, we agreed to indemnify NARCO with
respect to.personal injury claims for products that had been discontinued prior to
the sale (as defined in the sale agreement). NARCO retained all liability for all

" other claims. On January 4, 2002, NARCO filed for reorganization under Chapter 11 -
of the U. S Bankruptcy Code. o o : :

As a result of the NARCO bankruptcy flllng, all of the claims pending
_against NARCO are automatlcally -stayed pending the reorganization of NARCO.
addition, the bankruptcy court enjoined both the filing and prosecution of NARCO—
related asbestos claims against Honeywell. Although the stay has remained in
effect continuously since January 4, 2002, there is no assurance that such stay
will remain in effect. In connection with NARCO’s bankruptcy filing, we paid
NARCO’ s parent company $40 million and agreed to provide NARCO with up to $20
million in financing. We also agreed to pay $20 million to NARCO’s parent company
upon the filing of a plan of reorganization for NARCO acceptable to Honeywell

(which amount was paid in December 2005 following the filing of NARCO’s Third
Amended Plan of Reorganlzatlon), and to pay NARCO’'s parent company $40 million, _
and to forgive any outstanding NARCO indebtedness to Honeywell upon the effective .
.date of the plan of reorganlzatlon

We believe that, as part of the NARCO plan of reorganization, a trust will
be established for the benefit of all asbestos clalmants, current and future,
pursuant to Trust Distribution Procedures negotiated with the NARCO Asbestos
Claimants Committee and the Court appointed legal- representatlve for future

asbestos claimants. If the trust is put in place and approved by the Court as fair
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and equitable, Honeywell as well as NARCO will be entitled to a permanent
channeling injunction barring all present and future individual actions in state
or federal courts and requiring all asbestos related claims based on exposure to
NARCO products to be made against the federally-supervised trust. Honeywell has
reached agreement with the representative for future NARCO.claimants and the
Asbestos Claimants Committee to cap its annual contributions to the trust with
respect to future claims at a level that would not have a materlal 1mpact .on
Honeywell’s opérating cash flows

‘The vast majority of the asbestos claimants voted in favor of NARCO’s Third
Amended Plan Of Reorganization (NARCO Plan). The court conducted its: ev1dent1ary
hearing on confirmation issues on June 5 and 6, 2006. All objections to the NARCO
Plan have either been resolved or dismissed by the Bankruptcy Court. The Court'’s
confirmation order for the NARCO Plan was delayed, however,'due to additional
evidentiary requirements relating to the confirmation of a plan of reorganlzatlon
for one of NARCO’s affiliates. Although we expect the NARCO Plan and the" NARCO
trust to be ultimately approved by the Court, no assurances can be given as to the
Court’s ruling or the time frame for resolving any appeals of such rullng

Our consolidated financial statements reflect an estimated llablllty for
settlement of pending and future NARCO-related asbestos claims ‘as of June 30, 2007
‘and December 31, 2006 of $1.2 and $1.3 billion, respectively. The estimated
liability for pending claims is based on terms and conditions, including
evidentiary requirements, in definitive agreements with approximately 260,000
current claimants, and an estimate of the unsettled claims pending as of the time.
NARCO filed for bankruptcy protection. Substantially all settlement payments with
respect to current claims are expected to be completed by the end of .2007.
Approximately $90 million of payments due pursuant to these settlements " is .due
only upon establlshment of the NARCO trust.

‘The estimated liability for future claims represents the estimated value of
future asbestos related bodily injury claims expected to be asserted against NARCO
through 2018 and the aforementioned obligations to NARCO’s parent. In light of the
uncertainties inherent in making long-term projections we do not believe_that we
have a reascnable basis for estimating asbestos claims beyond 2018 under SFAS No.
5, “Accounting for Contingencies”. The estimate is based upon the disease criteria
and payment values contained in the NARCO Trust Distribution Procedures negotiated
with the NARCO Asbestos Claimants Committee and the NARCO future claimants’
representative. Honeywell projects the probable number and value, including trust
claim handllng costs, of asbestos related future liabilities based upon experience
of asbestos claims filing rates in the tort system and in certain operating
asbestos trusts, and the claims experience in those forums (as a result of more
clearly defined proof requirements and possible enactment of state medical
criteria bills). The valuation methodology also includes an analysis of the
population likely to have been exposed to asbestos containing products,
epidemiological studies to estimate the number of people likely to develop
asbestos related diseases, NARCO claims filing history, the pending inventory of
NARCO asbestos related claims and payment rates expected to be established by the
NARCO trust. This methodology used to estimate the liability for future claims has
been commonly accepted by numerous courts and is the same methodology that is
utilized by an expert who is routinely retained by the asbestos: clalmants
conmittee in asbestos related bankruptc1es

As of June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, our consolidated financial
statements reflect an insurance receivable corresponding to the liability for.
settlement of pending and future NARCO-related asbestos claims'of_$946 and $955
million, respectively. This coverage reimburses Honeywell for portions of the
‘costs incurred to settle NARCO related claims and court'judgments as well as
defense costs and is provided by a large number of insurance policies written by
dozens. of insurance companies in both the domestic insurance market and the London
- excess market. At June 30, 2007, a significant portion of this coverage is with
insurance companies with whom we have agreements to pay full policy limits based
on corresponding Honeywell claims costs. We conduct analyses to determine the
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amount of insurance that we estimate is probable of recovery in relation to
~payment of . current ‘and estimated future' claims. While the substantial majority of
our 1nsurance carriers are solvent, some of our individual carriers are 1nsolvent

" ‘which has been considered: in our analysis of probable recoverles We made

fjudgments concernlng insurance coverage that we believe are reasonable and

'con31stent with our historical dealings with our insurers, our knowledge of any
pertlnent solvency issues surrounding insurers and various jud1c1al determlnatlons.;
.relevant to our 1nsurance programs :

In the second quarter of - 2006 Travelers Casualty and Insurance Company
'“(“Travelers") flled a’'lawsuit against Honeywell and other insurance carriers in
.the Supreme Court of New York,. County of New York, d1sput1ng obllgatlons for
NARCO-related asbestos claims under high excess insurance coverage issued by
Travelers and other insurance carriers. Approximately $370 million of coverage -
under these policies is inéluded in our NARCO-related insurance receivable at June .
.30, 2007. Honeywell belieéeves it is.entitled to the coverage at issue and has filed
" counterclaims in the Superior Court of New Jersey seeking, among other things, -

. declaratory relief with respect to this coverage. Although Honeywell expects to
prevail in this matter, an adverse outcome could have a material impact on our
results of operations in the period recognized but would not be material to our
consolidated'financial:position or operating cash flows.

Progectlng future ‘events is subject to many uncertainties that could cause
the NARCO related asbestos liabilities or assets to be higher or lower than those
projected and recorded. There is no assurance that a plan of reorganization will
" 'be confirmed, that insurance recoveries will be timely or whether there will be
‘any NARCO related asbestos claims beyond 2018. Given the inherent uncertainty in
predicting future events, we review our estimates periodically, and update them
based on our expérience and other relevant factors. Similarly we will reevaluate
. our projections concerning our probable insurance recoveries in light of any
' changes to the projected 1lablllty or other developments that may 1mpact insurance
recoverles

Frlctlon Products - Honeywell’s ‘Bendix friction materials (Bendix) bu51ness
- manufactured automotive brake pads that contained chrysotile asbestos in an
encapsulated form. There is a group of existing and potential claimants consisting
largely of individuals that allegedly performed brake replacements '

From 1981 through June 30, 2007, we have resolved approxlmately 111, 000
. Bendix related asbestos claims 1nclud1ng trials .covering 125 plaintiffs, which
~resulted in 117 favorable verdicts. Trials covering eight individuals resulted in
adverse verdicts; however, two of these verdicts were reversed on appeal, three
'-are or shortly. will be on appeal and the remalnlng three clalms were settled.
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.. The following tables present information regarding Bendix related'asbestos
claims activity:- : : . A

‘Six Months Ended . Year Ended :

June 30, 2007 - December 31,
_ 2006 - 12005
Claims Activity - : - : - o
Claims Unresolved at the beginning _ T
of period : _ 57,108 . - . '79,502. .. 76,348
Claims Filed during the period - 1,447 ] - 4,391 . 7,520
Claims Resolved during the period : (6,489) : o (26,785)"_ (4,366) (a)
Claims.Unresolved at the end of period ' 52,066 ' _ 57,108 - 79,502
Disease Distribution of Unresolved
Claims : . - . S
Mesothelioma and Other Cancer Claims 4,802 : " 4,843 4,810
Other Claims - : 47,264 52,265 ~ ° -74,692
“Total Claims _ _ 52,066 : 57,108 . 79,502
(a) Excludes 2,524 claims which were inadvertently included. in'reSOlved '

_claims as of December 31, 2005 which had'no impact on the recorded
" values for such clalms and has been corrected for. purposes of thlS
presentation. :

Approximately 45 percent of the approximately'52,000 pending claims at June
'30, 2007 are on the inactive, deferred, or similar dockets established in some
‘jurisdictions for claimants who allege minimal or no impairment. The approximately
52,000 pending claims also include claims filed in Jjurisdictions such as Texas,
Virginia, and Mississippi that historically allowed for consolidated filings.
these jurisdictions, plaintiffs were permitted to file complalnts against a pre-
determined master list of defendants, regardless of whether they have claims
against each individual defendant. Many of these plaintiffs may not actually have
claims against Honeywell. Based on state rules and prior experience in these:
_jurisdictions, we anticipate that many of these claims will ultimately be
dismissed. During 2006 approximately 16,000 cases were dismissed. More than 85
percent of these dismissals occurred in Mississippi as a result of judicial
rulings relating to non-resident filings and venue. We anticipate additional
dlsmlssals in this jurlsdlctlon : ; o ’

'Honeywell ‘has experienced average resolutlon values per claim excludlng
legal costs as follows

Years Ended December 31,

2006 . 2005 . 2004
: . . (in whole dollars) - '
Malignant claims $33,000.  $58,000  $90,000
Nonmalignant claims : . $250 - $600 $1,soo

"It is not pOSSlble to predlct whether resolution values for Bendlx related
asbestos claims w1ll increase, decrease or stabilize in the future.

.Our consolldated financial statements reflect an estimated liability for
resolution of pending and future Bendix related asbestos claims at June 30 2007
and December 31, 2006 of $530 and $528 million, respectlvely

. The estimated liability for future claims represents the estimated value of
future asbestos related bodily injury claims expected to be asserted against
Bendix over the next five years. In light of the uncertainties inherent in maklng
long-term projections, as well as certain factors unique to friction product
asbestos claims, we do not believe that we have ‘a reasonable basis for estimating
asbestos claims beyond the next five years under SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies”. The estimate is based upon Bendix historical experience in the
tort system for the two years ended December 31, 2006 with respect to claims
filing and resolution. The methodology used to estlmate the 1lab111ty for future
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claims has been commonly accepted by numerous'coﬁrts.'It is substantially similar
to that used to estimate the future NARCO related asbestos .claims liability, with
the exception' that the valuation methodology for Bendix includes payment rates
based on. Bendix'resolution-history, rather than expected trust payment rates.

Honeywell currently has approxlmately $1 9 bllllon of. 1nsurance coverage
remaining with respect to pending and potential future Bendix related asbestos
claims, of which $212 and- $302 million are reflected as receivables in our
Aconsolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2007 and December. 31, 2006, respectively."
.This coverage is provided by a large number of insurance pollc1es written by
" dozens . of insurance companies in both the domestic insurance market and the London
excess market. Insurance receivables are recorded in the financial statements
51mu1taneous with the recordlng of the liability for the estimated value of the
" underlying asbestos claims. The amount of the insurance receivable recorded is
based on our ongoing analysis of the insurance that we estimate is probable of
. recovery.. This determination 1s_based_on our analysis of the underlying insurance
'.policies,rour historical experience with our insurers, our ongoing review of the
solvency of our insurers, our interpretation of judicial determinations relevant
‘to our insurance programs, and our consideration of the impacts of any settlements
‘reached with our insurers. Insurance receivables are also recorded when structured
insurance settlements provide for future fixed payment streams that are not
contingent upon future claims or other events. Such amounts are recorded at the
”net present value of the fixed payment stream. '

On a cumulatlve h1stor1ca1 basis, Honeywell has recorded insurance
. receivables equal to approximately 50 percent of the value of the underlying
asbestos claims recorded. However, because there are gaps in our coverage due to
insurance company insolvencies, certain uninsured periods, and insurance
settlements, this rate is expected to decline for any future Bendix related
asbéstos liabilities that may be recorded. Future recoverability rates may also be’
”impacted by numerous other factors, such as future insurance settlements,
insolvencies and judicial determinations relevant to our coverage program, which
are difficult to predict. Assuming continued defense and indemnity spending at
" current levels, we estimate that the cumulative recoverability rate could decline
over the next f1ve years to approximately 40 percent.

Honeywell believes 1t has suff1c1ent insurance coverage and reserves -to
cover all pending Bendix related asbestos claims and Bendix related asbestos
claims estimated to be filed within the next five years. Although it is 1mposs1ble
to predict the outcome of either pending or future Bendix related asbestos claims,
we do not believe that such claims would have a material adverse effect on our
" consolidated financial position in light of our insurance coverage and our prior
" experience in resolving such claims. If the rate and types of claims filed, the
average resolution value of such claims and the period of time over which claim
settlements are paid (collectlvely, the “WVariable Claims. Factors”) do not
. substantially change, Honeywell would not expect future Bendix related asbestos
claims to have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or operating
cash flows in any fiscal year. No assurances can be given, however, that the’
Variable Clalms Factors will not change. g
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Refractory_and friction products - The following .tables summarizeif'
information concerning NARCO and Bendix asbestos related balances:

Asbestos Related Liabilities o D o
: Six Months Ended -

June 30, 2007 ° B
Bendix NARCO . - Total
Beginning of period $ 528 $1,291 291  7%1,819
Accrual for update to estimated liability : 56 ..~ 58
Asbestos related liability payments ) (54) = (51): - (105)
End of period : $ 530 . $1,240° - 81,770

Insurance Recoveries for Asbestos Related Liabilities _— T
: . Six Months Ended
June 30, 2007

) Bendix NARCO - | Total
Beginning of period : $ 302 .- §955. - 81,257
Probable insurance recoveries related to estimated. : o
liability - 11 = 11
Insurance receipts for asbestos related liabilities . (98) : {9 - . (107)
Other - : (3) - = - (3)
‘End of period ' : : _ : $ 212 946 - - $1,158

NARCO and Bendix asbestos related balances are included in the follow1ng
balance sheet accounts:

. o _ June 30, 2007 - December 31, 2006
Other current assets - s 51 $. 157
Insurance recoveries for asbestos related , S

liabilities : 1,107 - _ 1[100
oL _ $1,158 : .. 81,257

Accrued liabilities $ 554 o $ 557

Asbestos related liabilities ' 1,216 - - ._1,262

$1,770 . 81,819

Other Matters

Baton Rouge, LA — As previously reported, three incidents occurred during
2003 at Honeywell’s Baton Rouge, Louisiana chemical plant, including a release of .
chlorine, a release of antimony pentachloride (which resulted in an employee °
fatality), and an employee exposure to hydrofluoric acid. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Justice have
conducted investigations of these incidents, including.a federal grand.jury
convened to investigate the employee fatality. As a result of that 1nvestigation,
we have signed a plea agreement with the U.S. Attorney under which ‘Honeywell will
plead guilty to a misdemeanor charge and pay $12 million in combined restitution
and fines. The plea agreement has been filed, but the plea and the sentence still
are subject to Court acceptance, which we expect to receive. Honeywell has been
served with several civil lawsuits regarding these incidents, for which we believe
we have adequate insurance coverage to the extent that there is any liability. We
-are also engaged in discussions with the Louisiana Department of Environmental
Quality (LADEQ) to resolve alleged civil environmental violations at our Baton
Rouge and Geismar, Louisiana faCllltleS that in part, overlap with the subject of .
the federal investigation.

_ Allen, et, al. v. Honeywell Retirement Earnings Plan — This represents a
class action lawsuit in which plaintiffs seek unspecified damages relating to
allegations that, among other things, Honeywell impermissibly reduced the penSion
benefits of employees of Garrett Corporation (a predecessor entity) when the plan
was amended in 1983 and failed to calculate certain benefits in accordance with
the terms of the plan. In the third quarter of 2005, the U.S. District Court for
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" the District of Arizona ruled in favor of the plaintiffs on these claims and in
. favor of'Honeywell on virtually all other claims. We strongly. disagree with, and
intend to appeal, the Court’s adverse ruling. A class was certified by the Court
-in . September 2006.. In light of the merits of our. arguments on appeal and our

substantial affirmative defenses which have not yet been considered by the Court
‘we continue ‘to. expect to prevail in this matter. Accordingly, we do not believe

that ‘a llablllty is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable and have not
' recorded a provision for this matter in our financial statements. Given the -

: uncertainty iﬁhereht_in litigation and the wide range of potential remedies, it is
not possible to .estimate the. range of possible loss that might result from an
adverse resolution of this matter Although we expect to prevail in this matter,
an adverse outcome could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations or operating ‘cash flows in the ‘periods recognized or paid. We do not
believe that an adverse outcome in this matter would have a material adverse
f effect on’ our consolidated finanCial pos1tion ' :

We are subject to a number of other lawsuits, 1nvestigations and disputes
(some of ‘which involve substantial amounts claimed). arising out of the conduct of
-our buSiness, including matters relating to commercial transactions, government
contracts, product liability, prior acquisitions and divestitures, employee
' benefit plans, and health and safety matters. We recognize a.liability for any
" 'contingency that is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable. We
continually assess the likelihood of adverse judgments of outcomes in these
" ‘matters, as well as potential ranges_of'probable losses (taking into consideration
any insurance recoveries), based on a careful analysis of each matter with the
assistance of'outside'legal'counsel and, if applicable, other experts

Given the uncertainty inherent in litigation, we do not believe it is
possible to develop estimates of the range of reasonably possible loss in excess
of current. accruals for these matters. Considering our past experience and
existing accruals, we do not expect the outcome of these matters, either
individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position. Because most contingencies are resolved over long
periods of time, potential liabilities are subject to change due to new
developments, changes in settlement strategy or the impact of evidentiary. .
requirements, which could cause us to pay damage awards or settlements (or become
subject to equitable remedies) that could have a material adverse effect on our
results of operations or operating cash flows in the périods recognized or paid.

NOTE 15. Acquisitions

" In July 2007, the Company compieted the acquisition of Dimensions
International, a defense logistics bus1ness, for a purchase price of approximately'
$230 million, which Will be integrated into our Aerospace segment. '

In July 2007, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire
Enraf Holding B.V., a provider of comprehensive solutions for the control and '
management of transportation, storage and blending operations in the o0il and gas
industry, which will be integrated into our Automation and Control Solutions
'segment. Completion of this acquisition is’ subject to regulatory approval. The
purchase price is expected to be approximately $260 million.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountiﬁg Firm

To the-Board of Directors and Shareohners”
of Honeywell International Inc.

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet'of Honeywel1'
International Inc. and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007, and the related
consolidated statement of operations for each of the three and six-month periods
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006. These interim financiai statements
-are the responsibility of the Company’s management. ' '

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public' Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review offinterim_fihancial-
information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stétes), the
" objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. .

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modificationé3that Shéuld-be_
made to the accompanying consolidated interim financial statements for them to be
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.. ' : .

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company -
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated'balance.sheet'aé of
December 31, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations; of
shareowners’ equity, and of cash flows for the year then ended, managemént’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006; and in our report dated
February 15, 2007 we expressed unqualified opinions thereon. The conédlidéted
financial statements and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting referred to above are not presented herein. In
our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated in all material respects in -
relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

PricewaterhoUseropers LLP

Florham Pérk, New Jersey
July 19, 2007

The “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” included above is
not a “report”. or “part of a Registration Statement” prepared or certified by an
independent accountant within the meetings of Sections 7 and 11 of the Securities
Act of 1933, and the accountants’ Section 11 liability does not extend to such
report. ' ' ' ' : '

28



" ITEM 2. S ~~ MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
' : ' . FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS . (MD&A)
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

The follow1ng MD&A is 1ntended to help the reader understand the results of

”operatlons and’ f1nanc1al condition of Honeywell International Inc. (“Honeywell”)
for the  second quarter and six months ended June 30, 2007. The financial
1nformatlon as of June 30, 2007 should be read in- conjunctlon with the financial

- -statements for. ‘the year ended December 31, 2006 contained in our Form 10-K filed.
on: February 16, 2007 ' ' ' '

A.- RESULTS OF QOPERATIONS - THREE MONTHS AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30 2007
COMPARED WITH THREE MONTHS AND SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

'Net Sales

' Three Months Ended ' 8ix Months Ended

~June 30, June 30,
e . - . o 2007 : __2006 2007 © 2006
Net sales : ' : - 88,538 . $7,898 $16 579 . $15,139

% change compared w1th prlor perlod i . 8% i : © 10%

The increase in net sales in the second quarter and six months of 2007
compared with the second. quarter and six months of 2006 is attrlbutable to the
follow1ng

Three Months Six Months

‘Price ' I . S 1% 1%
Volume - ' 5 . 6
I_Forelgn Exchange . .2 2
- Acquisitions/Divestitures - 1
3 > 8% 0%

A d1scuss1on of net sales by segment can be found ‘in the Review of Business
Segments sectlon of this MD&A.

.Cost of Products and'Services'Sold

Three Months Ended Six- Months Ended
: June’ 30, June 30,
- : : _ . _ 2007 .- 2006 2007 - 2006
.Cost of products and services sold $6,491 $6,027 . 812,641 $11,627
Gross Margin % = o - 24.0% 23.7% . 23.8% 23.2%

_ Gross margin increased by 0.3 percentage points in the second quarter of
‘2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 due primarily to higher margins in
our Aerospace and Automation and Contrel Solutions segments and lower pension and
other. postretlrement expense in our Corporate segment, ‘partially offset by

lower marglns in our Spec1alty Materials segment

" Gross margin increased by 0.6 percentage points in the first six months of
2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 due primarily to higher margins in
our Aerospace and Automation and Control Solutions segments and lower pension and

other postretirement expense in our Corporate segment, partially offset by higher
* repositioning charges . : :
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Selling, General and Administrative Expenses.

‘Three Months Ended Sileonths'Ended:,
: June 30, - June 30,
: 2007 2006 2007 - - 2006
Selling, general and administrative _ _ ' S
expenses _ _ $1,127 $1,086 = $2,216 - - $2,088

Percent of sales o 13.2% 13.8% - 13.4% - 13.8%

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales
decreased by 0.6 percentage points in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the
second quarter of 2006 and by 0.4 percentage points in the first six months'of
2007 compared with the first six months of 2006. These declines are primarily due.
to productivity sav1ngs in our Aerospace, Automation and Control Solutlons
(primarily selling costs) and Specialty Materials segments and lower" pension:and

other postretirement expense in our Corporate segment, partlally offset by hlgher
rep051t10n1ng charges.

* Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Three Months Ended - 8ix Months Ended

June 30, _ © - 'June 30,
o _ : 2007 2006 - 2007~ 2006
Pension and other postretirement : : S
benefits (OPEB) expense included
in cost of products and services
. sold and selling, general and : . - . _
. administrative expenses - $ 72 ' $118 ' $146 - $244

Pension and OPEB expense decreased by $46 million in the second quarter of
2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 due principally to a deorease of $40
million in pension expense. Pension and OPEB expense decreased by $98 .million in
the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 due
principally to a decrease of $87 million in pension expense. The decrease in’
pension expense in both the second quarter and first six months of 2007 .compared
with the same periods in the prior year is primarily due to a decrease in the
amortization of net losses in our U.S. plans resulting from an increase in the
discount rate at December 31, 2006 and actual plan asset returns hlgher than the
expected rate of return in 2004 and 2006.

Other (Income) Expense

Three Months Ended 8ix Months Ended

‘June 30, - . June 30,
2007 2006 . 2007 2006 -
. Equity (income)/loss of affiliated _ . : _ _

companies } $ 1) $ (1) $ (2) $ 1
Gain on sale of non-strategic - -

businesses and assets (15) (3) . (15) . (19)

Interest income (20) . (18) . (39) (3T

Foreign exchange o _ 7 3 12 4

Other (net) 12 2 _13 9

' - $Q0) $a7 $(31) $ (42)

- Other income increased'by $3 million in the second quarter of 2007 compared
with the second quarter of 2006, primarily due to the gain of $15 million on the
sale/leaseback of an ACS manufacturing facility partially offset by an increase in
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" other expenses (primarily due to a loss on the sale of an asbestos-related
‘insurance receivable) and an ‘increase in foreign exchange losses.

' Other'income'decreased by'$11 million in the first six months of 2007

compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due to an increase in
forelgn exchange losses of $8 mllllon

Interest and Other Financial Charges

_'Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
: ' : 2007 2006 2007 2006
Interest and other flnanc1a1 charges - - $110 $ 94 $207 " $183

% change compared with prlor period - 17% i 13%

_ ". Interest and other financial charges increased in both the second quarter '
_and first six months of 2007 compared with the same périods in the’ prior year, due
principally to higher debt balances and higher borrow1ng costs.

: Tax Eernse..
Three Months Ended = Six Months Ended
"June 30, - June 30,
o o o 2007 2006 2007 2006
' Tax expense o _ ’ $219. $187 $409 $331

Effective tax rate ' 26.4% . 26.4% 26.5% 25.8%

. The effectlve tax rate in the second quarter of 2007 was the same as the
effective tax rate in the second quarter of 2006. During the second quarter of
2007 the Company recognized a tax benefit from the favorable resolution of a tax
audit. This benefit was substantially offset by add1t10nal reserves for various -
1nternatlona1 and U. S. ‘tax audit matters. :

,The'effective tax rate for the first.six months of 2007 increased by 0.7
percentage points compared with the first six months of 2006 due primarily to _
lower tax benefit from the resolution of an audit in the second quarter of 2007

compared to the benefit from the resolution of a tax audlt in the first quarter on
2006 '

: The effective tax rate was lower than the statutory rate of 35 percent due
.in part to an increase in foreign earnings. and the benefits from the domestic
- manufacturing deduction and tax planning strategies.

‘Income from Continuing Operations

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,

_ 2007 2006 2007 - 2006
Income from continuing operations - $611 $521 $1,137 $952:
Earnings per share of common stock - : :

assuming dilution - $0.78 "~ $0.63 . $81.44 $1.14
. Earnings per share of common stock - assuming dilution increased by $0.15

'per share in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006
~and by $0.30 per share in the first six months of 2007 compared with the first six
months of 2006. The increases in both periods relates primarily to increased
segment profit, lower pension expense and a reduction in the number of shares
outstanding due to the Company’s stock repurchase program, partlally offset by
higher interest expense and repositioning and other charges
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Income from Discontinued Operations

Three Months Ended -'Six'Mgnths.Ended_

June 30, : . June 30,

: _ ) ~.2007 2006 2007 - 2006
Income from diséontinued operations s - s - 8- 5___3
Earnings per share of common stock - . ’ : I _ o

assuming dilution _ s - s - $.- . s0.01

Income from discontinued operations of $5 million, or $0.01 per  share, ‘in
the first six months of 2006 relates to the operating results of Indale;, sbld in
February 2006. _ , _ : : -

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
) June 30, : o - June 30,
_ 2007 2006 © 2007 . . 2006
Aerospace . $ 3,027 8 2,686 $ 5,867 ~$ 5,315
‘Automation and Control Solutions ' 3,039 ’ 2,766 .'_ '5,840, 5,131
Specialty Materials -1,216 1,253 _ 2,415 i _ 2,405
Transportation Systems _ 1,256 - 1,193 2,457 ‘2,288
Corporate ' : - - ' - T -
$ 8,538 $ 7,898 $ 16,579 - $.15,139
Segment Profit . oo L
Aerospace $ 523 $ 413 % 1,023 $. 853
Automation and Control Solutions 333 287 607 ~ .. . 508
Specialty Materials 175 217 - '367. _ 379
Transportation Systems 157 165 . - 313" - 307
Corporate ' ' "~ (54) (48) . (9. . (93)
Total Segment Profit ) 1,134 . 1,034 2,213 . 1,954
Other income (expense) ' .20 7 31 . a2
Interest and other financial charges (110) (94) (207{'-_ (183)
Stock option expense (A) (17) (16) (41) o (41)
Pension and other postretirement ) ' - '
expense (A) - (72) (118) o (146) - - (244)
Repositioning and other charges (A) (125) (115) . (304) . (245)
Income from continuing operations I
' before taxes. $ 830 $ 708 $ 1,546 ~$ 1,283

(A) Amounts included in cost of products and services sold and selling, general
and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. =
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‘Aerospace

Net sales

-%-.change compared w1th prlor perlod
' Segment profit

. % change compared w1th prlor ‘period

‘Three Months Ended

June 30,
2007. .- - 2006
$3,027 . $2,686
' T 13%
$ 523 "$ 413

- 27%

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2007 2006
$5,867 $5,315
10%
$1,023 $ 853

20% .

Aerospace sales by major customer end -markets for the second quarter and six
months ended- ‘June 30, 2007 and 2006 were as follows

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
% of . . % of o ]
' Rerospace % Changes Aerospace % Changes .
" Sales in Sales - Sales in Sales
-2007 2007
- : . S : Versus - Versus
Customer End-Markets 2007 2006 2006 2007 2006 2006
‘Commercial: o
Air transport and regional o . :
original equipment 16% . '15% 21%’ 16% 16% 15%
-Air transport and regional .
aftermarket : 22 23 S 10 - 23 23 9
Business and general aVLatlon . ' )
'orxglnal equipment - 11 11 14 11 11 13
Business and general aviation : o : i
_ aftermarket ' 10 .9 17 . 10 9 14 .
Defense and Space’ 41 _42 9 _40 41 8
Tctal 100% 100% 13% 100% 00%

10%

Aerospace ‘sales 1ncreased by 13 percent in’ the second quarter of 2007
compared with the second quarter of 2006 and by 10 percent in the first six months
of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006. Details regarding the increase
in sales by customer end—markets are as follows:

e Ajir transport and reglonal.original equipment (OE) sales increased by 21
" percent in the second quarter_and 15 percent in the first six months
" primarily driven by increased deliveries to our air transport customers

due to higher aircraft production

rates.

e Air transport and regional aftermarket sales increased by 10 percent in

' the second quarter and 9 percent in the first six months as a result of
increased sales of spare parts and maintenance activity relating to
approximately 6 percent increases in global. flying hours in both the
second quarter and first six months of 2007. :

¢ Business and general aviation OE sales increased by 14 percent in the .
. second quarter and 13 percent in the first six months due primarily to an
increase in new business jet deliveries due to contlnued strong demand in

the business jet end-market

e ..Business and general aviation aftermarket sales increased by 17 percent
in the second quarter and 14 percent in the first six months due to
~higher engine utilization, hlgher sales of spare parts and increased

maintenance events

Defense and space sales increased by 9 percent in the second quarter and

8 percent in the first six months, primarily due to higher sales of
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surface systems as well as increased space sales, including engineering_
activ1ty relating to the Orion (CEV) program.

Aerospace segment profit increased_by 27 percent in the second quarter of"
2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 and by 20 percent in theée first six
months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 due primarily to sales
volume growth, increased prices, productivity and a one-time reimbursement of’
certain research. and development costs (in the first quarter of 2007), partially'
offset by inflation : .

Automation and Control Solutions

Three Months Ended Six Mpnths Ended

June 30, ° . June 30,
_ _ 2007 2006 2007 . 2006
‘Net sales. ) ' $3,039 $2,766 $5,840 $5,131
% change compared with prior period 10% 14% 7
Segment profit ' $ 333 -8 287  $ 607 - § 508

% change compared with prior period - 16% .Z 19%

) Automation and Control Solutions (“ACS”) sales increased by 10 percent in-
the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006, predominantly
through organic growth, including 3 percent favorable impact of foreign exchange.
All ACS businesses contributed to the continued organic growth in the quarter,
primarily driven by favorable market conditions in Europe and Asia and the items
discussed below. : :

¢ Sales in our products businesses grew by 9 percent’ primarily due to
increased sales of our security, fire systems, gas detection, and
environmental and combustion control products, as well as the favorable
impact of foreign exchange :

e Sales in our solutions businesses increased by 11 percent, driven by
continued strong growth in orders and conversion to sales from our order
backlog as well as the favorable impact of foreign exchange.

ACS sales increased_by 14 percent in the first six months of 2007 compared
with the first six months of 2006, with 11 percent organic growth' (including 3
percent favorable impact of foreign exchange) and growth from acquisitionsl(net of
divestitures) of 3 percent. All ACS businesses contributed to the.continued
organic growth in the period, primarily driven by favorable market conditions in
Europe and Asia and the items discussed below.

] Organic sales in our products businesses grew by 9'percent,primariiy'due to
increased sales of our security, fire systems, sensors, gas detection, and -
environmental and combustion control products, as well as the favorable
impact of foreign exchange

] Organic sales in our solutions businesses increased by 14 percent, driven by
strong. growth in orders and conversion to sales from our order backlog, as
well as the favorable impact of foreign exchange.

e GCrowth in ‘sales from acquiSitions, net of divestitures was $152 million in
the first six months of 2007, largely representing revenues from our
acquisitions of First Technology plc (gas detection) and Gardiner Groupe
(security distribution) in March 2006 and May 2006, respectively.

ACS segment profit increased by 16 percent in the second. quarter of 2007 .
compared with the second quarter of 2006 and increased by 19 percent in the first
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six months of 2007 compared with the first six months. of 2006. These increases
are due principally to increased sales and productivity savings_partially offset
by ‘inflation and ‘a change in mix resulting "from stronger sales in our solutions )
:bu51nesses (1n particular, our Building Solutlons bu51ness) that hlstorlcally have
lower marglns than our. products bu51nesses - '

' Specialty Materials

Three Months Ended . Six Months Ended

~June 30, June 30,
L : : o I . 2007 2006 2007 2006
.Net sales o ' C : 81,216 $1,253 $2,415 ° $2,405
% change compared with prlor perlod N (3%) - : -% '
‘Segment profit $ 175 -8 217 $. 367. $ 379
% change compared w1th prlor perlod o (19%)_ ' T . (3%)

Spec1alty Materials sales decreased by 3 percent in the second quarter of
2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006. This decrease is primarily due to
_ lower sales in our UOP business which decreased by 9% principally due to unusually .
“high volume'of catalyst sales in the second quarter of 2006, which was partially :
offset'by_strong performance in our UOP projects business (primarily due to higher
equipment sales). Total sales of our other Specialty Materials businesses were '
'-essentlally flat in the second quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of
2006 : . .

3pec1alty Materials sales were flat for the first six months of 2007
' compared w1th the first six months of 2006.

Ch Sales 1ncreased by 5 percent in our UOP business due to strong performance
" in our projects business (prlmarlly equipment sales and royalties), -
partially offset by a decrease due to unusually high volume of catalyst.
‘sales in the first six months 2006.
e TFluorine Products sales. decreased by 6 percent due to lower prices for
refrigerants and lower industry demand for household appliances and
_ insulation materials as a result of weakness in the U.S. housing market.
e Resins and Chemicals sales decreased by 2 percent primarily due to lower
" sales volume due to a temporary plant outage in the second quarter and raw
mater1a1 supply issues, partially offset by price increases to pass on
. certaln raw material costs to the end customer

Spec1alty Materials- segment proflt decreased by 19 percent in the second
quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006 due principally to. lower
sales in our UOP business, lower prices for refrigerants in our Fluorine Products
business and lower sales volume in our Resins and Chemicals business as a result’
of a temporary plant outage. The effect of increased pricing, primarily due to
formula price agreements, offset raw material inflation costs.

Specialty Materials segment profit decreased by .3 percent in the first .six
months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due to lower
prices for refrigerants in our Fluorine Products business partially offset by
strong performance in our UOP projects business and higher price and productivity
gains. in the remalnlng Spec1alty Materlals bu31nesses
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Transportation Systems

Three Months Ended Slx Months Ended

June 30, S - June 30,
) 2007 2006 2007 _”._2006 _
Net sales ' $1,256 . $1,193 $2,457I”' $2,288
% ‘change compared w1th prlor period . 5% - . o 7% - . '
Segment profit . $§ 157 $ 165 = S 313 $ 307
% change compared with prior period ' (5% 32% i

Transportation Systems sales increased by 5 percent in. the second’ quarter of.
2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006, primarily due to favorable 1mpact
of foreign exchange and increased sales in our Turbo business.

¢ Turbo sales increased by 9 percent in the second quarter of 2007

' compared with the second quarter of 2006 primarily due to favorable
impact of foreign exchange and continued strong sales to European '
light vehicle manufacturers, offset by lower sales to Class 8 englne
manufacturers. :

e Consumer Products Group sales were flat in the second quarter of 2007
compared with the second quarter of 2006 primarily due to reduced
sales of automotive aftermarket products offset by favorable 1mpact of .
foreign exchange. :

Transportation Systems sales increased by 7 percent in the first six months
of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006, primarily'due to favorable
impact of foreign exchange and to increased sales in our Turbo bu51ness and
‘Consumer Products Group. :

. Turbo sales increased by 9 percent in the first six months of 2007
compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due to favorable
impact of foreign exchange and strong sales to European light vehicle
manufacturers, offset by lower sales to Class 8 engine manufacturers.

e Consumer Products Group sales increased by 5 percent in tne first-six
months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 due to
favorable 1mpact of foreign exchange and volume growth. :

Transportation Systems segment profit decreased by 5 percent in'the_second'
quarter of 2007 compared with the second quarter of 2006. Increased productivity,
increased prices and lower warranty expense were more than offset by the impact of
inflation, prlmarlly relating to nickel components, and the cost of new product
launches

Transportation Systems segment profit increased by 2 percent in the first
six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due to
productivity, increased prices and lower warranty expense, partially offset by the
impact of inflation, primarily relating to nickel components, and.the cost of new
product launches.
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Repositioning and Other Charges

A*summary-of-repositiOning and other charges follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, ‘ June 30,
- S ) . . 2007 2006 ) 2007 2006
'severance - - % 45 $ 23 o $119. - $ 47
Asset 1mpairments _ o 4 ) - : ) -
”Ex;t costs e - 2 5 ' 4
'_Adnustments SRR o “(5) (7N ' (9 (9
Total net reposltlonlng charge ) T 44 ) 18 ) 125 42
Asbestos related 11tlgat10n charges,.' _ _ ) .
: net of 1nsurance o S . ' 21 49 : 45 77
_Probable and- reasonably estimable o .
env1ronmsnta1 liabilities. - 60 - 48 120 - 110
Business 1mpa1rment charges R . - - L - i 9
.. Other '~ _ _— : - S - 14 7
Total net.reposltlonlng and other charges § 125 $ 115 ‘$ 304 $ 245 '

The following table summarizes the pretax distribution of total net
repositioning_and_other'charges by income statement classification:

Three Months. Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, - June 30,
o . : 2007. - 2006 L 2007 2006
Cost of products and services sold . ' $ 114 $ 115 $ 273 $ 245
.Selling, general and administrative expenses 11 : ) - .0 31 ) -

$ 125 - § 115 $ 304 $ 245

The following table summarizes the pretax 1mpact of total net rep051tlon1ng and
other charges by segment -

Three Months Ended - Six Months Ended

June 30, ) ) June 30,
. . . 2007 ' 2006 2007 - 2006
' Aerospace ) ’ $ 5 $ 2 - $ 31 -8 .3
Automation and Control Solutions ' 37 -10 . 78 19
Specialty Materials (1) (1) ) 4 6
Transportation Systems - C 24 ] 24 55 . 66
Corporate ' : . 60 80 136 ' . 151
' $ 125 '$ 115 . $ 304 . % 245

_ In the second quarter of 2007, we recognized a net repositioning charge of
$44 million primarily for severance costs. related to workforce reductions of 807
manufacturing and administrative positions associated with the rationalization of
manufacturing capacity and infrastructure and a plant closure, principally in our
"Automation and Control Solutions segment.

_ In the second quarter of 2006, we recognizeda repositioning charge of $25
million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductions.of 482
manufacturing and- administrative positions mainly in our Aerospace, Automation and
Control Soclutions and Transportation Systems segments. Also, during the second
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quarter of 2006, $7 million of previously established accruals, primarily for
severance at our Aerospace and Specialty Materials segments, were returned to -
income due primarily to changes in the. scope of preViously announced severance
programs.

In the first six months of 2007, we recognized a net repOSitioning charge of .
$125 million primarily for severance costs related to workforce reductions of
2,142 manufacturing and administrative positions associated with the _
rationalization of manufacturing capacity and infrastructure and plant closures,
principally in our Automation and Control Solutions and Aerospace segments

In the first six months of 2006, we recognized a net repositioning charge of
$42 million primarily for severance costs related to workforce. reductions of 1, 008
manufacturing and administrative positions in our Automation and Control
Solutions, Transportation Systems and Aerospace segments.

Our repositioning actions are expected to generate incremental pretax.
savings of approximately $100 million in 2007 compared with 2006 principally from
planned workforce reductions. Cash expenditures for severance and other exit costs
necessary to execute these actions were $50 million in the first six months of
2007 and were funded through operating cash flows. Cash expenditures for severance -
and other costs necessary to execute the remaining actions will approximate $125
million in 2007 and will be funded through operating cash flows.

In the second quarter of 2007, we recognized a charge of $60 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable ‘in ‘the quarter.
We also recognized a charge of $21 million, net of probable insurance recoveries,
representing an update to our estimated liability for the resolution. of Bendix
related asbestos claims as of June 30, 2007. Asbestos matters are discussed: in -
detail in Note 14, Commitments and Contingencies. -

In the second quarter of 2006, we recogriized a charge of $48 million for
" environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable  in the quarter.
We also recognized a charge of $49 million, primarily for Bendix related asbestos
claims filed and defense costs incurred during the second quarter of 2006, including
an update of expected resolution values with respect to claims pending as of- June
30, 2006, net of probable insurance recoveries. The asbestos related charge also
included the net effect of the settlement of certain NARCO related pending asbestos
claims" and a. Bendix related insurance settlement.

In the first six months of 2007, we recognized a charge'of'$120 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the period,
We recognized a charge of $45 million, net of probable insurance recoveries,
representing an update to our estimated liability for the resolution of Bendix
related asbestos claims as of June 30, 2007. We also recognized other charges of
$14 million for a business sale tax related to a prior divestiture ($8 million)
and for a contemplated settlement of a legal matter ($6 million).

In the first six months of 2006, we recognized a charge of $110 million for
environmental liabilities deemed probable and reasonably estimable in the_period.
We recognized a charge of $77 million primarily for Bendix related asbestos claims
filed and defense costs incurred during the first six months of 2006, including an
update of expected resolution values with respect to claims pending as of June 30,
2006, net of probable insurance recoveries. The asbestos related charge also
included the net effect of the settlement of certain NARCO related pending .
asbestos claims and a Bendix related insurance settlement. We also recognized
business impairment charges of $9 million primarily related to the write-down of
property, plant and equipment held for sale in our Specialty Materials segment,
and other charges of $7 million primarily related to a property ‘damage litigation.
" matter in our Corporate segment.
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B. .LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow Summary -

ey Our oashsfloﬁs from operafing, investing and financing activities, as
. reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the six months ended
”June 30 2007 and 2006 are summarlzed as follows

. Cash provided by  (used for): _ _
Operating activities . S oo 51,561 $1,174

' | Investing activitiés o ' _ o (257) (259)
° Financing activities - ' ' o C . (910) (741)
. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash . . 15 ' 16

‘Net increase in cash and cash equivalents : . $ 409 § 190

_ Cash provided by operating activities increased by $387 million during the

" first six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 primarily due
_ to increased earnings, lower cash tax payments of $134 million and lower pension

. and other postretlrement payments of $70 million, partially offset by an increase
“in worklng capital of $126 million (higher accounts receivable consistent with
'-hlgher sales partlally offset by an increase in accounts payable). In addition,
there were ‘receipts from the sale. of insurance . receivables of $97 and $100 million
in the second quarter of 2007 and the first quarter of 2006, respectively.

Cash used for investing activities decreased by $2 million during the first
six months of 2007 compared with the first six months of 2006 due primarily to
lower spending for acquisitions of $500 million and higher proceeds from disposals
of property, plant and equipment of $38 million, partially offset by lower
' proceeds'from sales of businesses of $524 million. The first six months of 2006
included our acquisitions of the First Technologies and Gardiner Groupe businesses
‘and our- dlvestltures of the Indalex and First Technology Safety & Analysis
bu31ness .

Cash used for financing activities increased by $169 million during the
first six. months of 2007 compared with the first- months of 2006 primarily due to
an increase in the repurchases of common stock of $2,659 million partially offset
by an increase in net proceeds from debt of $1, 924 million, a $346 million
reduction in the payment of debt assumed with acquisitions and an increase in
proceeds from issuance of common stock primarily related to stock option exerc1ses
“of $185 million.

ngEldltx

The Company continues to manage its businesses to maximize operating'cash
flows as the primary source of liquidity. In addition to our available cash and
operating cash flows, additional sources of liquidity include committed credit
lines, short-term debt from the commercial paper market, long-term borrowings,
access to the public debt and equity markets as well as the ability to sell trade
accounts receivables. We continue to balance our cash and financing uses through
investment in our existing core businesses, acquisition activity, share
repurchases and dividends. ' :

In May 2007 the Company entered into a $2.8 billion Amended and Restated
Five Year Credit Agreement (“Credit Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks.
Commitments under the Credit Agreement can be increased pursuant to the terms of
the Credit Agreement to an aggregate amount not to exceed $3.5 billion. The
Credit Agreement is maintained for general corporate purposes, including support

39



for the issuance of commercial paper, and replaces the previous $2.3 billion five
year credit agreement dated April 27, 2006 (“Prior Agreement”). There have been
no borrowings under the Credit Agreement. No borrowings were outstandlng at any
time under the Prior Agreement. The: Credlt Agreement does not restrict the '_
Company's ability to pay dividends, nor does it contain flnanc1a1 covenants,

" In March 2007, the Company issued $400 million 5.30% Senior Notes due 2017
and $600 million 5.70% Senior Notes due 2037 (collectively, the “Notes") The
Notes are senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Honeywell and rank
equally with all of Honeywell’s existing and future senior unSecured debt ‘and
senior to all Honeywell’s subordinated debt. The offering resulted in gross .
proceeds of $1 billion, offset by’ $12 million in debt issuance costs Proceeds
from the notes were used to repay commercial paper and debt. - '

We contlnuously assess the relative strength of each bus1ness 1n our .
portfollo as to strategic fit, market position, profit and cash flow contrlbutlon
in order to upgrade our combined portfollo and identify business units that will
"most benefit from increased investment.. We identify acquisition. candidates that
.will further our strategic plan and strengthen our existing core bus;nesses We

also 1dent1fy business units that do not fit into our long- term strateglc plan
based on their market. position, relative profitability or growth potentlal These
business units are considered for potential divestiture, restructuring’ or other
repositioning actions subject to regulatory constraints. E ' S '

In July 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of Dimensions -
International, a defense logistics business, for a purchase price of approximately
$230 million, which will be integrated into our Aerospace segment This .
acquisition was funded u31ng commercial paper.

In July 2007, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to- acqulre
Enraf Holdlng B.V a provider of comprehensive solutions for the control and .
management of transportation, storage and blending operatlons_ln the oil and gas
industry, which will be integrated into our Automation and Control Solutions
segment. Completion of this acquisition is subject to regulatory approval. The
purchase price is expected to be approximately $260 million which we anticipate
funding using available cash.

.C. OTHER MATTERS

Litigation

We are subject to a number of lawsuits, investigations and clalms (some of
which involve substantial amounts) arising out of the conduct of our bu51ness
See a discussion of environmental, asbestos and other litigation matters in Note
14 of Notes to Financial Statements. ' '

Critical Accounting Policies

The financial information as of June 30, 2007 should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements for the year ended December .31, 2006 contained in
our Form 10-K filed on February 16, 2007. '

For a discussion of the Company’s critical accounting policies, see “Item 7.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations in our Form 10-K filed on February 16 2007.
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Recent. Accounting Pronouncements

_ ‘See Note 2 of Notes to Financial Statements for a discussion of recent
accounting pronouncements, including discussion of the impact of adopting “FIN 48:
“Uncertain_Ta*-Positions” on ‘January 1, 2007.

{ITEM 3 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K (Item 7A) ‘As of June 30, 2007,
'_-there has . been no material. change in this 1nformatlon '

ITEM 4. - CONTROLS ‘AND 'PROCEDURES

'~ Honeywell management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
-Fiﬂahcial'Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure_--
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q. Based upon that evaluation, the_Chlef Executive Officer and
‘the Chief Financial Officer concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures
- were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on
From 10-Q in alerting them. on a timely basis to material information. relating to
Honeywell required to be included in Honeywell’s periodic filings under the
- Exchange Act. .There have been no changes that have materially affected, or are
‘reasonably likely to materlally affect, Honeywell’s internal control over )
‘financial reportlng that have occurred during the period covered by this Quarterly
Report ‘on -Form 10 -Q. .

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL‘PROCEEDNGS

General Legal Matters

" We are subject to a number of " lawsults, investigations and claims (some of
'whlch involve substantlal amounts) arising out of the conduct of our business.
See a discussion .of env1ronmental asbestos and other litigation matters in Note
14 of Notes to: Flnanclal Statements.

Env1ronmenta1 Matters Involv1ng Potentlal Mbnetary Sanctlons
in Excess of $100,000

As prev1ously reported three 1nc1dents occurred durlng 2003 at

- Honeywell's Baton Rouge, Louisiana chemical plant, including a release of
chlorine, a release of antimony pentachlorlde (which resulted in an employee
fatal;ty),'and ‘an employee exposure to hydrofluoric acid. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Justice have
conducted investigations of these incidents, including a federal grand jury
convened to investigate the employee fatality. As a result of that investigation,
we have signed a plea agreement with the U.S. Attorney’under which Honeywell will
plead guilty to a misdemeanor charge and pay $12 million in combined restitution
and fines. The plea agreement has been filed, but the plea and the sentence still
are subject to Court acceptance, which we expect to receive. Honeywell has been
served with several civil lawsuits regarding these incidents, for which we believe
we have adequate insurance coverage to the extent that there is any liability. We
are also engaged in discussions with the Louisiana Department of Environmental
Quality (LADEQ) to resolve alleged civil environmental violations at our Baton

Rouge and Geismar, Louisiana facilities that, in part, overlap with the subject of
the federal investigation. ' '

41



_ Although we cannot predict the outcome of the matters described below, we
believe that sufficient provisions have been made in our financial statements for
‘these matters. We do not believe that the matters described below will: have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial pOSltlon results of
operations or operating cash f1lows: ' '

Honeywell is a defendant in a lawsuit filed by the Arizona Attorney'
General’s office on behalf of the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
- (ADEQ) . The complaint alleges failure to make required disclosures, as well as
unrelated environmental violations. ADEQ’s most significant allegations have -been
dismissed with prejudice over the course of the proceedings.. The state has
-voluntarily dismissed its remaining claims without prejudice pending- conSideration
of an appeal of its previously dismissed claims

In February 2007, ADEQ demanded penalties for alleged v1olations by
Honeywell of the state’s underground storage tank regulations at’ the aircraft
engines plant in Phoenix, Arizona. ADEQ subsequently added claims relating to
other alleged environmental violations at the aircraft engines plant and. has made
a demand to resolve all alleged violations which we are evaluating. Negotiations
regarding the penalty are ongoing.

-Honeywell received Notices of Violation from the Maricopa County Air Quality
Department in July 2006 with respect to various air permitting compliance matters
at one of its facilities located in Phoenix, Arizona. Honeywell believes it has

taken appropriate corrective and preventive actions to address the concerns raised
by the County. :

The State of Illinois has brought a claim against Honeywell for penalties
and past costs relating to releases of chlorinated solvents at a facility owned by
‘a third party. The State claims that a predecessor company to Honeywell delivered
solvents to the third party from 1969 until 1992; that spills occurred. during
those deliveries; and that Honeywell should pay a share of the penalties and state
response costs connected with those spills. Honeywell believes it has strong
defenses to the State’s claims (including that the contamination arose primarily
from releases unrelated to the predecessor’s deliveries). We are engaged in
discussions with the State regarding a negotiated resolution of this matter

ITEM 2. CHANGES IN SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The fOllOWlng table summarizes Honeywell’s purchases of its: common stock
par value $1 per share, for the three months ended June 30, 2007:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities o :
(a) -~ (b) (c) . - (d)

Total Number Approximate Dollar
_ of Shares - Value of Shares that
Total : Purchased as May Yet be Purchased
Number of Average Part of Publicly Under Plans or
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Programs
Period Purchased ‘per Share or Programs {Dollars in millions)
April 2007 - - - : $2,523
May 2007 26,810,000 $56.71 26,810,000 } $1,003
June 2007 13,600,000 = $57.42 13,600,000 $3,222 (1)

(1) Approximately $222 million is remaining under the previously reported
share repurchase authorization. 1In addition, the Board of Directors has
authorized the repurchase of up to .an additional $3 billion of Honeywell common
stock. Honeywell intends to repurchase outstanding shares from time to time in
the open market primarily using cash flow generated by operations. The amount and

_timing of repurchases may vary depending on market conditions and the level of
other investing activity, but is presently expected to be to the extent necessary
to maintain an essentially flat -share count for the balance of 2007
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ITEM 4.

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
_below : _

'SUBMISSION OFiMATTERS TO'A'VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

rAt the Annual Meetlng of. Shareowners of Honeywell held on April 23, 2007,
follow1ng matters set forth in our Proxy Statement datéd March 12, 2007,
filed with the Securities.and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under

were voted upon with the results indicated

.,The nominees listed below were elected directors;with the respective votes.
set forth opposite their names:

which was

oL FOR = AGAINST
TGordon'M; Bethune 663,856,682 33,318,257
Jaime Chico Pardo 658,648,413, 38,526,526
.David M. Cote. ' 660,239,905 36,938,434 -
" D.. Scott Davis 668,541,821 28,634,516
. 'Linnet F. Deily" 666,021,419 31,155,448 -

. .Clive R. Hollick. 663,967,436 33,208,903
James J. Howard . 665,854,831 31,323,477
Ivan G. Seidenberg - 656,506,594 40,669,743

' Bradley T. Sheares" 665,004,884 32,173,455
Eric K. Shinseki. 667,193,124 . 29,985,214
John R. Stafford 640,386,773 56,789,566
Michael W. Wright

665,170,122 32,004,896

2. A proposal seeking approval of the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
as. 1ndependent accountants for 2007 was approved, with 672,319,204 votes
cast FOR 13,174, 691 votes cast AGAINST and 11 610,494 abstentlons,

- 3.:A proposal regarding approval of the 2007 Honeywell Global Employee Stock
. Plan was approved, with 557,815,280 votes cast FOR, 28,930,522 -votes cast
AGAINST 14,168,811 abstentions and 96,263, 726 broker non-votes;

4. A shareowner proposal regardlng the recouplng of unearned management bonuses
was not approved, with 139,560,177 votes cast FOR, 436,044,074 votes cast
AGAINST 25,504,088 abstentlons and 96,070, 000 broker non- votes,

5. A shareowner proposal regardlng performance based stock optlons was not
approved, with 254,046,284 votes cast FOR, 333,332,847 votes cast, AGAINST
13,731,408 abstentions and 96,067,800 broker non- votes,

6. A shareowner proposal regarding spec1a1 shareholder meetings was approved,
with. 435,067,442 votes cast FOR, 150,897,614 votes cast AGAINST 15,145,584
abstentions and 96,067, 699 broker non- votes; and

7. A shareowner'proposal'regardlng six sigma was not approved, with 38,808,928
votes cast FOR, 502,033,214 votes cast AGAINST, 60 266,954 abstentlons and
96,069,243 broker non-votes.

ITEM 5. OTHER MATTERS

As disclosed in Item 4 above, at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners held on

. April 23, 2007, our shareowners approved the 2007 Honeywell Global Employee Stock

Plan (the “Global Employee Stock Plan”). A summary of the material terms of the
Global Employee Stock Plan is contained in our definitive proxy statement filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2007 and is incorporated
herein by reference. ‘Such summary is qualified in its entirety by the Global
Employee Stock Plan, which is flled as Exhibit 10.4 to this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q. .
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ITEM 6.

(a)

EXHIBITS

Exhibits. See the Exh
on Form 10-Q. :

ibit Index on page 46 of this Quarterly Report
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to .the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934!_£he

registrant:has duly_céused_this report to be signed on its behalf by the
*’ . undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Honeywell International Inc.

Date: July 19, 2007 - .. ~ By: /s/ David J. Anderson
R ' David J. Anderson
‘Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
_ (on behalf of the Registrant
and as the Registrant’s '
Principal Accounting Officer)

/
.y,
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Exhibit Number

10.2*

10.3%

10.4* -

11
12
15

18
19
22
23
24
31.1

31.2

32.1
32.2

99

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

- Omitted (Inapplicable)

Omitted (Inapplicable)
Omitted (Inapplicable)

Amended and Restated Five Year Credit Agreement dated as of May 14, 2007 by and
among Honeywell International Inc., the banks, financial institutiors and other
institutional lenders party thereto, Citicorp USA, Inc., as administrative
agent,-Citibank International PLC, as swing line agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, Deutsche -
Bank AG New York Branch and UBS Loan Finance LLC, as documentatlon agents, and
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as joint lead
arrangers and co-book managers (incorporated by reference to Exhlblt 10. 1 to
Honeywell’s 8-K filed May 18, 2007)

1994 stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of AlliedSignal Inc., as emended
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 30, 2003 and by the attached amendment (filed herewith))

1993 Stock Plan for Employees of Honeywell International Inc. and its.
Affiliates, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A ‘to Honeywell's
Proxy Statement; dated March 10, 1994, filed pursuant to Rule l4a-6 of the .
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and amended by Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's'
Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004, by Exhibit 10.9 to Honeywell's Form 10-K

‘filed February 16, 2007 and by the attached amendment (filed herewith))

2007 Honeywell Global Employee Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Honeywell's Proxy Statement, dated March 12, 2007, fi;ed pursuant to Rule 14a-6
of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934) .

Computation of Per Share Earnings (1) :
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (filed herewithf

Independent Accountants’ Acknowledgment Letter as to the’ 1ncorporatlon of their
report relating to unaudited interim financial statements (filed herewith)

Omitted (Inapplicable)

Omitted (Inapplicable)

Omitted (Inapplicable)
Omitted (Inapplicable)
Omi;ted (Inapplicable)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Sectibn-3d2:of fhe
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith) - '

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.s.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 (filed
herewith) - - :

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes—OxleyIAct of 2002 (filed
herewith)

Onmitted (Inapplicable)

The Exhibits identified above with an asterlsk(*) are management contracts or compensatory plans or

arrangements.

(1) Data required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share”, is -
. provided in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in this report. .
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